
Korah & Korah
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of MfV Losistics Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of MMOGISTICS PRMTE
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3 I 't March 2024, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infomation.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of tle matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case ofthe Balance Sheet, ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company as at M arch 37st,2024,
and

b) in the case ofthe Statement ofProfit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement ofthe profit, and its
cash flows.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Investment by the Company in the equity shares of ll/s. Sea Bird Sea Plane Private Limited amowting
to INR 2.70 Crores, is valued at cosl without any impairment loss. The lnvestee company has not
commenced commercial operations since 2'd November 2012, being its date of incorporation. We also
understand that its creditors have approached the National Company Law Tribunal(NCLT) for
liquidation of the company. On the basis of these facts, it is construed thal the inveslee company is no
longer a 'Going Concern' and hence the assels of the investee company are to be valued at the net
realizable value (NRV). In the absence of any audiied financial statements or the liqaidation repofi,
impaitment in the value of this inveslmen! of the Company cannot be ascerlained by us. The Comparry
had also adyanced a loan of INR 3.02 Crores to L[/s. Sea Bird Sea Plane Private Limitedfor which no
repayment of principal is seen. The Company has not made any provision for lhe realizability of the
loan advanced. Further the Company has nol accountedfor the interest due on the said loan. Therefore,
since the workout for impoirment of the equity investment has not been provided for audit, we arc not
in a position to comment on the impact of such impairment or realizabilily on the Standalone Financial
Statements in this regard.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under t}rose Standards are further
described in.the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements section
and in Appendix A to our report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit ofthe standalone financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and applopriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other lnformation
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our Audit Report thereon. Our opinion on the
standalone financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard

Responsibilities of Management/Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statemenas

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view ofthe
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndi4 including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud
or elTor.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis ofaccounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a gua-rantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material
misstatemedt when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individualiy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis ofthese standalone financial statements.

With respect to the additional responsibilities for the audit ofthe standalone financial statements as

required under SA 700, refer 'Appendix A'.



Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('1he Order,,) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (ll) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
'Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination ofthose Books ofAccount.

c. The Balance Sheet, the statement ofProfit and Loss and the cash FIow statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accountsy Rules,2til4.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31"t March,2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified as on 3l
March,2024, fiom being appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164(2) ofthe Act.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact ofpending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. Rerr Note 56 to the standalone financial statements;

b) The Company does not have any long{erm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note 57 to the standalone financial
statements;

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or' entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (,,Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;



(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds lrave been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions ofsection l2J ofthe Act.

3. Since the Company is a piivate limited company, the provisions of Section 197 do not apply and
hence, we do not report on the same.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN o. 006138S

Deepak Korah George
Partner
M No. 255036
UDIN: 242550368KII8GD5877

Place: Cochin
Date: l SrH June 2024

(iii)Based on audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

f) .Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books ofaccount for the financial year ended 3l.t March 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course ofour audit we did not come across any instance ofthe audit trail feature being
tampered with.



.APPENDIX A' TO THf, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF f,VEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATtrMtrNTS OF MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued..)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting fiom fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal control.

ll.

tll.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3XD of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
audit reporl to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achiev€s fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identiry during our audit. We also provide those charged with govemance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0061385

Korah George
Partner
M No. 255036
UDIN: 24255036BKH8GD5877

Place: Cochin
Date: 18rH June 2024



I

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph I under on'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'of
our lndependent Audit Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of MfV
Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 3l'r March, 2024

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms.of sub-section ( I l) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such
checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
further report that:

b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management at
reasonable intervals. However, since the maintenance ofproper records are still tmderway,
ntaterial discrepancies, if any could not be ascertainable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination ofthe records ofthe Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are

duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are

held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.

2. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) (a) ofthe Order
is not applicable.

3. During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partrerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a)
to 3(iiixo ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions ofSection
185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security have been

complied.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year and hence the

directives issued by the Reserve Bank oflndia and the provisions ofsections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions ofthe Act and rules framed there under are not applicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records prescribed by the Central Govemment
under.sub-section (l) of section 148 ofthe Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) ofthe Order is not
applicable to the Company.

6

a) The Company is in the process of updating the records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situalion as required under Schedule II ofthe AcL of Property, Plant
and Equipment and Intangible Assets-



7

8.

9

a) According to the information and explanations fumished to us and according to our
exainination ofthe books of account, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and any
other statutory dues applicable to it other than Labour Welfare Fund (LWF).

6) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, sales tax, Goods and Services Ta.x, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and other
material statutory dues were in anears, as at 3l st March,2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. except for Labour Welfare Fund (LI{F) which is
not quantifiable by the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination
ofthe records ofthe Company, no statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have been deposited on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination
ofthe records ofthe Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 196l as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has not. defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of
i terest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any govemment authority.

c) In our opiniorr and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the money obtained by way ofterm loans during the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination ofthe standalone financial statements ofthe Company, we
repof that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements ofthe Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures during the year ended March 3l't 2024. Hence clause 3(ix)(e) ofthe Order is not
applicable.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge ofsecurities held in
its subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies.



10.

11.

12.

13.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially

or optionally convertible) during the year and hence the question of whether the requirements

ofsection 42 and section 62 ofthe Act have been complied with and the funds raised have been

used for the purposes for which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly paragraph

3(x)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company

a) Based on the audit procedures performed and representations obtained from Management, we

report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule l3 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with
the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle-blower complaints received

during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions

made by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements

as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company's internal audit system needs to be

augmented-

b) Also, as per Section 138 of the Act, since no Internal Audit is applicable to the Company, we

have not considered any Internal Audit report.

15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected

with them during the period under review. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable.

16.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank of lndia
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) The Company is not a Core lnv€stment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bahk of lndia. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the based on the examination of
the records, the Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.



c) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there is no core investrnent

company within the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (d) ofthe Order is not applicable.

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

19, On the basis ofour understanding ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the

standalone financial statements, knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management plans, no

material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report that Company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date ofbalance sheet as and when they fall due within a period ofone
year from the balance sheet date.

20. The Company does not fall within the prescribed limits forthe purpose ofsection 135 ofthe Act.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx) ofthe Order is not applicable.

21. The provisions ofclause 3(xxi) ofthe Order are not applicable to standalone hnancial statements,

and hence we do not report on the same.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Acc0untnnts

006138s , ErD

Deepak Korah George
Parlner
M No. 255036
UDIN: 242550368KHBGD5877

Place: Cochin
Date: l8rH June 2024



Figures at the end of
the previous reporting

Period

Figures at the end of
the current reporting

period

Note
No.

Particulars

4,600.00
2,296.43)

4,600.00
(2,177.52

600.00

16.17
374.00

498.20

484.36

290.43

2.93

2.94

482.62

329.33

16.15

195.66627.52

873.07

I,053.53

269.14

192.94

249.50

33.18

787.24

997 .26

269.14

r78.05

249.50

34.88

44'7.31

647 .09

354.07

75.83

195.66627.52

(l) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & SurPlus

(2) Non - Currcnt Liabilities
(a) Long - Term Borrowings

(b) Long - Tcrm Provisions

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Bonowings
(b) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises;

(B) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro and

small enterprises

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) Short- Term Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

II. ASSETS

(l) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and EquiPment

ii) tntangible assets

iii) Capital work-in-Progress
(b) Non - Cunent lnvestments

(c) Def€ned Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Long - Term Loans and Advances

(e) Other non-current assets

(2) Current Assets

(a) Trade Receivables

(b) Cash and Cash EquiYalents

(c) Short -Tcrm Loans and Advances

(d) Other Cunent Assets

Total Assets

7

LIAB TIES

3

4

5

6

TIIl'Y

8

9

10

I1.a

11.b

t2
13

t4
l5

l6
t7
t8
19

MIV LOGISTICS PRTVATD LIMITED

[ClN Number- U63012KL201 1 PTC0288391

Balance Sheet as at 31st March' 2024

tll. Significant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of Financial

Statements

On behalf ofthe Board

For MIV Logistics Private Limited

Dr langovan Shaji Kallada
DirectorDirector

D 052 76

ln Lakhs

1&2

As per our Audit Report ofeven date attached.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants

FRN 006138s

Deepak Korah George, ACA
Partner

Membe rshio No.0260?? 2l9=C-36
u DrN a4 isso 36 e*b qusez+

J

Company Secretary

Membership No. A58228

Place: Cochin

Date'. 1810612024

DIN: 01866682

)lathe\1

663.99

54.67

369.18

23.61



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE I,IMITED

lCtN Number- t]630l2KL20l I PTC0288391

Strtement of Profit and Loss for the yenr ended 3l st Morch, 2024
n Lakhs

As per our Audit Repo( of ev€n date attached.

For Korrh & Korah 6(0.
On behalfofthe Board

For MIV Logistics Privrt. Limited

Dr. K Ell.ngovrn
Director

Company Secretary

Membership No. A58228

Chartered

FRN N 8S

\.,j-::

16

Shrji Ks
Director
DIN:01866682

Korrh George, ACA

Partner
Membership No. O36Of ? >9f4%
u D[N:aA2S9O & grcU 6qO StAl

Place: Cochin

Date: 1810612024

For thc period
01.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

Note
No.

For the period
01.0.1.2023 to

31.03.2024
Particulsrs

1,678.19

51.93

r,800.25

50.92

|,130.721,851.17

637.06
14.56

76.45

163.28

829.21

786.63
69.08

46.91

t58.67
656.01

1,780.62I,7 t1 .36
-{9.90133.81

16.99t4.90

-66.89r r 8.91

(0.22)
(0.22)

0.40

0.40

21

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26Other Expenses

IV,Totrl Erpctrses

V. Prolit Before Trx (IIl - IV)
\rl. Trr Erpensc:
(l) Current Tax
(2) Defened tar

YIl. ProIit / (Loss) for thc P€riod (V-VI)

vIIl. Eerning per Equity Shrre:
(l ) Basic

-Revenue from Operations

lll, Totel Income
Other Income

and Amortisation

Diluted

lV. Expenses:
Direct Exp€nses

Employee Benefi t Expense

Finance Costs



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
ICIN Number- U630l2KL20l lPTC028839l

Statement ofCash Florvs for the year ended 3lst March 202,1

Lakhs)

Particulars
For the p€riod
01.0,t.2023 to

31.03.2024

For the period
t1.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

(49.91)

163.28

4.07

3.60
76.45
(5.13

208.40

22.94
(1e.34)

192.36

(195.80)

(147.87)

171.95

212.00

(111.12)

232.61

232.61

(15.62)

5.13

(10.49)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTII'ITIES
Profit Before Taxes

Adjustrnent for :

Depreciation and Amortisation
Provision for Ijave Encaslments

Provision for Gmtuity
Finance Costs

Interest Income

Operating prolit before Working Capital Changes

Changes in working Capital

Adjustrnents for ( Increase )\De6ease in Op€rating Assets

Tmde Receivables

Shoft term loans and advances

Other Current Assets

Adjustments for increase (D€crease ) in Operiting Lirbilities
Short Term Bornowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilitics
Short term Provisions

Cash generat€d from Operations
Taxes Paid

Gratuity Adjusted

Leave enca.shment paid

Net cash Provided by Operating activities -( A )

CASII FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Puchase of property Plant & Equipment

Other Non cunent Asset -Security deposit received

lnvestments in Equity shares

Transfer from Capital Work In Progress

sale of Assets

Investments in lease hold rights

Interest received

(16.58)

5.73

BNet Cash from Investin actiritics

133.80

306.89

337.86

5.73

(r79.s8)

(300.29)
458.57

158.67

3.86
0.29

46.97

(2t6.69)
(r5.ll)
52.22

(495.26)
(l.7r)
38.90

-0.50

116.32

214.93
(16.45\

(1.70)

(226.00)
(46.91)

(271.61',| 374.80

(s92.41)

647.09

596.95

50.13

51.61 617.09

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term loans and advances

Other Non current Assets

Repayment of [4an
Finance Costs

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities - ( C )
Net increase ( de€rease ) in Cash ind Cash €quivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Rounding Off Difference

Exchange Difference

Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(6.60)

(10.8s)



Comprises

Cash in Hand

Balancc With bank
Curent Accounts

Deposit Accounts

In Earmarked Accounts

Dividend Account

0.05

5l.l I

3.52

0.07

Cesh srd Bank Bahnce st the end ofthe y€ar 54.67 611.09

On behalfofthe Board

For NIIV Logistics Private Limitcd
As per our Audit Report ofeven date attached

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants

FRN t38S
(

L(

Dr. Ellangovan ShajiKall
Director

Deepa Korah

Director Partoer

D T6 DIN: 01866682 Membership No. €360fi 2STCBG

Company Secretary

Membership No. 458228

u DtN,aq2gs/cBEB f rt gc^DS A??

Place: Cochin

Date: 1810612024

230.65

416.36



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATf, LIMITED

ICIN Number- U63012KL201 lPTC028839l

NOTE - 3 SHARE CAPITAL (In Lakhs)

ff,-" 
""tfr".ir"a, 

i.*"a, subscribed aod fully paid up share capital comprises ofequity & preferenc€ shares with a par value ofRs.l0/-

each as follows:

The Company has one class ofEquity Shares having face value per Share ofRs l0/- and Redeemable Pteference shares having face

value per share of Rs. I 0/' each

iliation rof tstandi

f,quitv Shares

The Company has one class of Equity shares having face value of Rs.lO/ each .Each sharcholder is eligible for on€ vote per share held'

1," oiuia"n6 lr-y, proposed by Board ofDirecto;s is subject to approval by Shareholders in the ensuing Amual ceneral meeting

B-""pt i. ,f," "^" 
iriir,;rim dividerd. In the eved of liquidation, the equity share holders arc eligible to receive the remaining assets of

the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding

10,75yo Redeemable Preference shares

Redeemable preference shares carry a fixed cumulative dividend of 10.?57o and can be converted into Equity sharcs atthe option ofthe

t otao ute. tt 
" 

p"aoa of l0 Years. (Year end iE 2025 aIId 2026 respectively based on the issue date of pleference shares )

Particulars
Figurcs at the end ofthe
current reporting period

Figures at the cnd ofthe
previous reporting period

No. ofShares No.ofSharcs Amount

SIIARE CAPITAL
Authorized
40000000 Equity Shares ofRs.lo/- each fPreriots year: 40000000

Eq ty Shares of Rs.l0/- each)

20000000 10.?5%Redeemable Preference sharcs of Rs.lO/-each

(Previous year: 20000000 10.75"/0 redeemable preference shares of
Rs.10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed .nd Paid uP

30000000 Equity Sharcs ofRs.l0/- each fully paid-ttp (Previous

30000000 Equiry Shares ofRs.l0/- each)

16000000 10.75% Redeemable Preference Shares ofRs.l0/- each

(Previors yeor: 16000000 redeenoble prefete ce shares ofR-s.10/-

each)

2,00,00,000

4,000

2,000

4,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

4,000

2,000

6,00,oo,oo() 6,000 6,00,00,000 6,000

3,00,00.000

1,60,00,000

3,000

t,600

3,00,00,000

1,60,00,000

3,000

1,600

4,60,00,000 4,600 16000000 4,600

Prrticulars
Figures at the end ofthe
current r€Porting Pcriod

Figures at the eDd ofthe
previous reporting period

No. ofShares Amount No.of Shares Amount

Equity Shares

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning ofthe year

Shares issued during the Period
Shares bought back dudng the period

Number of shares at the end of the

3,00,00,000 3,000 3.00.00,000 3,000

3,00,00,000 3,000 3,00,00,000 3,000

10J57n Redeemrble Preferencc shares

Number of shares outstalding at the beginning of the year

Shares issued during the Period

Shares bought back dudng the period

Numtrer of shares at the end of the

1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600

4,60,00,000 4,600 4,60,00,000 4,600

4,00,00,000



Shrres bcld by lloldiog Comprny, subsidirry ComPrny !

Associrlas etc

Shar€s held by
Its Holding Co. & its Ultimate HoldinS Co

Subsidiaries of its Holding Co. & its Ultimate Holding Co.

Associates of its Holding Co. & lts Ultimate Holding Co.

Nit
Nil
Nir

Nit
Nir
Nil

Nit
Nil
Nil

Nit
Nil
NiI

Shrres held by .ach sh.reholder holdiog morc thad 57o sheres

INKEL Limited - 39.43% (Previous Year 39 43 %)

M FAR Enterprises Pvt Ltd - 25.40 6/0 (P y 25 .40 o/o\

vKI Esrate hdia Pr Ltd - 15.17 %(P v l5.l'l v")

ShIi.YusuffaliMA- l0 %(P Y l070)

Shri. J K Menon - 5 %(P Y 5 o/o)

Shri. Siddeek Ahmed Haji Panatharayil - 5 % (P Y 5 %)

I
INKEL Limited - 100%

1,18,29,714

16,20,286

45,50,000

30,00,000

15,00,000

15,00,000

1,183

162

455

300

150

150

|,18,29,714

16,20,286

45,50,000

30,00,000

15,00,000

15,00,000

l, t83
162

455

300

150

150

1,60,00,000 r,600 1,60.00,000 r,600

Detrils ofshares held by Promoaer / Promoter Group 8t the end

of the YeNr

Eouitv Shares ofRs.l0/-each fullv oaid

NKEL Limired - 39.43% (Previous Year 39.43 %)

M FAR Enterprises P!'t Ltd - 25.40 % (P y 25 .40 yo)

vKL Esrare India Pvt Ltd - 15.17 % (P y 15.17 o/o)

l0.75yo Red€emrble Prefe.ence shrres

INKIL Limited - 100%

I,18,29,114
16,20,286
45,50,000

2,40,00,000

1,60,00,000

I,183
762
455

2,400

1,600

1,18,29,7l4
76,20,286

45,50,000

2,40,00,000

1,60,00.000

1,183
'162

455

2,400

t,600

d,00,00,000 1,000 4.00,00,000 4,000



Figures at thc
erd of the
prrvious

reporting p€riod

Figures at the end
ofthe current

reportiog Period

Psrticulars

(2,229.s3\
-66.89

(2,296.43)
118.91

(2.296.42)(2,117.52)

t2,296-42\(2,111-52\

Surplus
op€ning Balanc€

Current period profit/ (loss)

Closing Balance

TotAl Reserves and Surplus

MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITf,D

NOTE-4 RESERVES AND SURPLTJS
(ln Lakhs)

NOTE . 5 LONG Tf,RM BORROWINGS

NOTf, -6 LONG-Tf, RM PROVISIONS

Particulars
Figures at the end

ofthe currcnt
reporting Pcriod

Figures {t the

.trd of th.
previous

reporting period

Provision for Omtuity
Provision for kave Encashmenl

Totrl Lotrg-Tarm Provisions

7.67
8.50

16.17

NOTE.7 SHORT TERM BORRO\YINGS

Particulars

Figures at the
efld of the curr€nt
reporting Period

Figures at the
end of the
previous

reporting Period

Cunent Maturilies ofLong_ Term Borrowings 2.94 498.20

2.91 498.20

PArticuhrs
Figures at the end

of the curr€nt
rcporting period

Figures at the
end of the
prcvious

r€porting Period

Secured Loan
Term l,oan fiom State Bank Of India

(Durihg the lnancial year 2022-23, o loan vas recei' ed

undet lhe Gtarahteed Emergehcy Crcdtt Like (GECL) by

wdy ofsearilizalion oJthe Co pan!'s assels The loan is

for a period of 60 months which is rewable aler a
oraloriun petiod oJ 24 monlhs in 36 monlhb instolhnenls

Intete of9.25yoper annun is opplicoble)

374.00 600.00

37,1.00 600.00



Particulars
Figures rt the end

of lhc current
reportitrg period

Figurcs rt the

end of th€
prtvious

reporting period

Others

(A) Lcss thrn one yerr
Sundry Creditorc

Advance from CustomeN / Service
providers/Contractors

Totd -A

(B) More Th{n One Yerr
Sundry Creditors

Advanco Aom Customers / Service
providers/Contractors

Expense Payable

Totrl -B

416.18

0.87

378.09

0.89

417.05

105.35

105.35

Total(A+B) 482.62 484.36

NOTE - 8. TRADD PAYABLES

Note -8.1 Trrde Payebles

Outstanding for

NOTE.9 OTHER CURRf,NT LIABILITIES

Nft€r du€ drtc ofpaymeot Lakhs

Above 3 years TotalI to2 yerrs 2 to 3 YesrsParticulers

MSME
42.20 482.6257.2'7 2.15380.80

Disputed Dues MSME

Disputed dues Olhers
481.369.59 8.85162.73 3.19

Particulrrs
Figures et the and

oftbe curr.nt
reporting period

Figures at th€

€nd ofthe
previous

reporting period

Retention Money payeble

Statutory Dues

Securily D€posit/Eamest Money Deposit

Expense Payable

Salary & Allorvaoces payable

Sublease Rent Payable - CPT

Sub-l€ase Penalty Payable - CPT

Totxl Long-TcrD Provisions

3.55

7.21

lM.24
23.10

0.08

50.54

138.60

3.55

7.91

20.26

0.08

46.20

138.60

329.32 290.42

378.98

65.57

L€ss than
I year

Others

:

t



NOTE .TO SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars
Figures 3l the end

ofthe current
reporting pcnod

Figures at the
end ofth€
previous

reporting period

Provision for L€ave Encashmenl
Provision For Gratuity
Provision for Bonus & Exgralia

Tot{l Short-Term Provisions

5.93

8.06
2.17

0.16
0.t0
2.6',1

16.16 2.93

NOTE - 12 NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

Diminulion in ralue has not been proided in lhe absence ofd
proper Jair ral e- Insobency Resolulion Process iniliated againsl

lhe Associale Co oafl.

NOTE . 13 Df,FERRED TAX ASSETS (Nf,T)

N-OTE - 14 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

NOTf, - T5 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSf,TS

Particulars
Figures at the etrd

of thc currenl
reporting period

Figures rt thc
end ofthe
previous

reporting pcriod

Fixed Deposit with Bank
Lien Marked FD with Commissioner ofCustoms 34.88 33.l8

3,t.88 33.18

PArticulars
Figur€s {t the etrd

ofthe current
r.portirg period

Figures at the
end ofthc
preyious

reporting period

Investments in f,quity Itrstruments (Unquoted)

ln Associrte Comprtry - Seabird See Pl&oe Priv.te Limited
Unsecured considered gmd

Fully paid €quity shar€s

Fully paid equity shar€s by loan convenion
234.00

35.14

234.00

35.14
269-t4 269.11

PerticulArs
Figures at the end

of the currcot
reporting p€riod

Figur€s rt the
end ofthe
previous

reportiog p€riod

Opening Balance

Cunent Year (Asset)r-iabilityl
(t92.94)

r4.90

(209.93)

16.99

(178.01) (192.9,1)

Particulars
Figures at the end

ofthe current
reporting pcriod

Figures rt the
end of lhc
previous

reportiog Period

., Securcd (Considered good)

Security Deposits

b,Unsecured (Cotrsidered good)

Total Long-Term Loals & Adv|nccs

249.50 249.50

219.50 219.50



Particulars
Figures st the end

of thr current
reporting period

Figures at th€
end ofthe
previous

reporting period

Unsacured, Considered good

- Over 6 Months

- Others

2t4.85

449 t5

117 33

329.98

664.00 111-31

NOTE - 16 TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTf, -16.1 Trade R€c€ivables

Outstandi for riods.fter due date of payment

NOTE -16.2 Trade Receivrbles

NOTE . 17 CASH & CASII EQUIVALENTS

(In Lakhs)

Particulars
Figurcs st the end

ofthe current
reporting period

Figurrs at the
cnd ofthe
pr€vious

reporting period

Cash on Hand

Balance with Banks

Fixed Deposit with Banks

Total Cash & Crsb Equivrlents

0.0s

5l.l l
3.52

0.0?

230.65

416.36

54.68 617.08

P.rticulers
Less thrn
6 Mooth!

6 Months to I
2 to 3 yerrs Moreths[ 3

years
Total

Undisputed considered
good

449 t5 962 165.55 3.34 36 34

Undisputed considcred

Doubtful

Disputed considered good

Disputed considered

Doubttul

449.15 9.62 165.55 334 664.00

329.98Previous Yeor 60.89 5.13 t7.38 33.92

661.00

36.34

447.30



Particulars
Figures at the end

ofthe current
reporting period

Figures at the
end ofthe
pr€vious

reporting period

Secured Considered good

Advance to Seabird Sea Plane P vate Limited
(Secured by charge on Movable Asset -

KODIAK 100 aircraft )
The borrower Company is under a Corporute

lnsolvency Resolution process. Hovever, lhe

Managemenl is conJidenl oJrcalizing the loan
amounl wilh interest.

301.85 301.85

301.85

Unsecured Considered good

Advance to Suppliers and Contractors

Advance Income Ta-x & TDS

Balances rvith Govemment Authorities

Totrl Short T€rm Loans & Advances

8.82

45.23

13.28

0.36

36.73

15.l3

67.33 52.22

369.18 354.07

NOTE - 18 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

NOTE - 19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars
Figures at the end

ofthe current
reporting period

Figures at the
end ofthe
prcvious

reporting period

Prepaid lnsurance

Prepaid Expense

Interesy Accrued Income Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

12.29

t.73

9.58

12.08

0.39

63.36

23.60 75.83

301.85



i
s
,Y
.\

t
s

E

-

?

P

3

:
T

e

r

i

I

!

s
.s

*

a
$

2

esr
E

,!
I

3

i
!.

I

qi

i

-i

-i

'j

-i

5

+

t

F

J
F

I

(J

F
o6
.r

E

:

z

EF
.i

-i

!
F
z

-

o.:r..!9n

!

i-
z

<q

6qq69-

-jE- -

s;

o
e

! :v1 o?o? ! r:

E

z
I

U

F

=U
!)

-qE
-1 z

ii
aJa

z
F

U

F
,
D

Q
I i1

;o+6;E

..i

!i'j
e

9?

-i E-.
:ix

e-P

; Hiti>

=-E 9

<€

I

o

>:3t
6-9..!rr

-i

u
U

I
o

:9 3 3- -i-le
I

3

I

d3

E5

I

F F

F
(,

F F

E
-9
,,Eg :gEi.E !E.aeE z: a-
s E *E e fi:E;:4lr
5#;EEE

I

r{ F.iF.i F



NOTE - 20 Rev€nue from op.rrtions

Prrlicllhrs
For ih. p€riod 0l.0{.2023 to

11.03.2024

For thc pcriod 01.M.2022
ro 31.03.2023

(a) Sale of Products
Dom€slic Sales

Expon Sales
(b) Srle of Services

Domestic Sales

Export Sales
(c) Gmnls or Donations receiv€d
(d) Other opeBting revenues

Tolrl of RGvEtruc F om Op.rrliont

1.800 25 t.6t879

1.800.25 1,618.79

MTV LOCISTICS PRIVATE LI TITED

NOTf, - 2l Other lncome

P.rticulrrs
For th. period 01.01.208 ro

3t.03-2024
For the p€riod 0l .(X.2022

to3r.03.2023

O6er non-opcrEting income 50 92 51 93

50.92 5t.91

fiOTf, - 22 Direcl

for lhe period 01.{X.2023 to
31,03-2024

For the period 01.M.2022
lo 31,03.2023

Renlal Charges

Di.ect t bouraulsourced
Olher Opemtional Exp€nse

Tot.l of Direcl Erpenses

266.38
t92.49
327.76

232.82
r61.59
242.6

786.63 6J7.07

Note 22. t - Ahet Operutiornt E pen:es inctudes lNR I I llrkh.t ol haruntee .'otnniseon Nid to lnkel Linited

NOTE.23 E B€nefit

Prrticulars
For lhc p€riod 01.&.2023 to

31.03.202.1

for the p.riod 01.U.2022
ro 31.03.2023

(s) Sdaries & Allowancls
Employee Salary

Managenal remuneralion
(b) Contribulion to Provident aod Oher Funds

(c) SBrf Wclfare Expense

Totrl of Employe. Bercfil!

64.09

3.64
1.35

6.1 96

8.22

l.l8
69.08 7{.56



NOTE - 24 trinrnce Costs

Prrticulars
For the period 01.04.2023 to

11,03.2024

For lhe period 01.04.2022

to 31.01.2023

Interest Expense 46.91 16 45

46-97 76.45

NOTE.25 reicarion/Amortiz tion

Prrticulars
For lhe period 01.(X.2023 to

31.03.2024

For the period 01.0.1.2022

to 31.03.2023

(a) Deprecialion on Tangible Assets

(b) Amortization on Intangible Ass€.s

10t.34
57 33

106.52

56.76

158.67 163.28

NOTE - 26 Other

Particulars
For the period 01.0,1,2023 to

31.03.2024

For the pcriod 01.04,2022
to 31.03.2023

(a) Renl
- Offic€ Rent
- Armual kase Rent

(b) Travelling Expenses:

- Hotel and Accommodation

- Travelling Expedses

(c) Audit Fees

- Statutory Audil Fees

- Tax Audit Fees

- Othe.s
(d) R€pairs & Maintenance

- Building
- Office
- Ma.hinery
-Equipment

e) Insumnce
(f) Telephone & inlemel charges:

- Mobile Phone Expenses

- lntemet Cbarges

G) Other Expemes
- Baflk charges

- Sittrng fee to Directors

- Annual Maintainenc€ Contract

- Office General Expense

- Facilily Management Service Expense

' Electricity and Water Charges

- Professional Charges & Legal Fee

- Penal Charges

- Olher services

- CPT Sub-Lease Rent

Totsl ofOther Expenses

329 0l

24.O2

2.00

29.53

461
16.58

2.07

5.64
2.00

3.43

17.90

46.82

66.80
5.18
0.7'7

6.67
92.94

322 62

20.98

1.40

0.40
0.16

29.65

t9.56

6s6.03 829.26

NOTE - 27 Earn Per Sharc

Particularl
Ior lhe period 01,04.2023 to

31,03.2024

For the pe.iod 01.0,1.2022

to 31.03.2023

Basic:

Profit / tloss) for the Period

Number ofEquity Shares

Earnings per Share

Diluted:

Profit / (loss) for the Period

Numb€r ofEquity shares

Eamings per Share

I18.91

3,00,00,000
0.40

U8 9l
3,00.00,000

040

-66.89

3,00,00,000
(0.22)

-66 89

3,00,00,000

-0.22

9.31

1.80

339
11.59

53.50
5t.3?

8.78

153 82

5.93

80.38
46.20



MIV I,OCISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Other Notes to Strndalon€ Financial S

28 Contingent Li.biliti€s and Commitments (Ir"R in Lakhs)

30 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during FY 2023-24

Undisclosed Inconre

There are no transactions that are not recorded in thc books of accounl to be surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

the tax assessments under lhe hcome Tax Act, l96l

32 Detrils relating to Micro, Small and M€dium enterpris€s (INR in Lakhs)

Addilio I Re[uhtorv I rmetion

Title deeds oflmmovable properfy not held in n:rme ofthe Company

The Compaly has no immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name ofthe Company

3t

Particulars

Figures at the
end of the
currcnt

reporting
period

Figures at the

end of th€

Previous
rePorting

Pcriod
(a) Contingent liabilities

l. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

2. Guarantecs

3. Other money for which the Company is contingently liable

4. Arrears offixed cunrulativ€ dividend ofpreference shares

(b) Conmitrnents

l. Estimated Amount of Contacts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

2. Uncalled liability oo sharcs and other inveshnents partly paid

3. Other conmitnents (specifu nahfe)

Total 84.65

Figures at the
end of the
curtent

reporting
Particulars

(a) at the end ofeachtoAmount

I amount

'lnterest amount

Th€ amount ofinte.est paid by the ComPany in terms ofsection 16 ofthe N{icro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the anount ofthe

payment made to the suppliet beyond the appointed day during the year

(b)

al amountI

'lnterest amount2

(c) The arnount ofinterest due and payable for the period ofdelay in making payment (w

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

specified urder the MSMED Act, 2006

hich have

(d) The arnount ofinterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ofthe year; and

G) The amount of further interest remaining duo and payable even in the succeeding years, until

such date when lhe interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise' for the purpose

ofdisallowance ofa deductible expeuditure under section 23 ofthe MSMED Act, 2006

33

29 Proposed Dividend

There is no amount of dividends proposed to be dishibuted to equity and preference shareholders for the period-

84.65

Figures 8t the

cnd of the
previous

rcporting
neriod



I't The Company has not granted any loans and Advances in the nature ofloans to promoters, directors, KMPS and the related
parties eidler severally or jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repaylnent.

CWIP Ageirg Schedule

The Company has no Capital Work-in-progress as on 3l/03/2024

36 Detrils ofCapital lvork-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has €xce€ded its cost compared to its original plan*

The Company has no Capital Work-in-progess as on 31103/2024, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost
compared to its original plan.

Agcing Schcd!le oflntangible Asseas Under Development

The Company has no lntangible Assets under D€velopment as on 31.03.2024

Detrils ofint.ngiblc assets under dcv€lopment, whose completion is overdue or h.s exceeded its cost compared to its
originel phn*
The Company has no Intalgible Assets under dev€lopment as on 31.03-2024, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its

cost compared to its original plan.

39 There are no prcceedings initiated or pending against the company for holdin8 any benami property under the Benarni

T.ansactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and lhe rules made thereunder.

40 The Company has borrowings from banks or linaacial institutions on the basis of security of curent assets. However, no

quarterly retums or statements of current assets have been filed by the Company.

4l The company has not been declarcd wilful defaulter by any bank or finaocial lnstitution or other lender

42 The Company had no transaction with companies strirck offunder Section 248 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the FY 2023-24.

4J There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be .egistered with Registrar ofcompanies beyond the statutory period.

44 Finrncirl Ratios rs on 31st March 2024 Ir INR Lakhs

38

Net Profit Before
Tax+Depreciation
and Amortization

Expellsc+lnterest
Expense

Repayment of
installnents &
interest

Denominator
Current
Period

Previous
Period

oh ol
variance*

Numcrator

Liqridity Rrtio
1111.45 831.0{

Trade Receivables+

Cash & Cash

Equivalents+

Sho( Term Loans &
Advanc€s+
Other Current Assets

Short Term
Borrowings+
Trade Payables+

Other Cur.€nt
Liabilities+
Shon Term
Provisions

r.34 t.t9 t2%

Solvency Ratio

376.91

Share Capital
0.13 0.37 -660/0

Long Term
Borrowings +Long-

Term Provisions+

Short-Term
Borrowings

Debt-Equity Ratio (times)

-121.26321.55

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times) -0.45 2. r8

Current Ratio (times)

1000.00

I

f-------T-------

-121%



Profitrbility r.tio
1800.25I18.91

2660/o-0.040.07Revenue from

OperationsNet Profit Aft€r TaxNet Profit Ratio (%)

t000.00I lE.9l
-2780/.-0.020.04

Share CapitalNet Profit After Tax

-Prelerence Dividend
Renrm on Equity Ratio (%)

tl96.4E180.78

-85%0.15

Bofiowings

Share

Capital+Reserves arld

Suplus+tnng-Term
Net Prolit Before

Tax+Finance Cost

tltilizrtion Rrtio
663.991800.25 n to/.2.11

Trade ReceivablesRevenue ftomTrade Receivables tumover raho

(tines)

0.000.00 NA
AverageCost of Goods Soldlnventory tumover idtio (times)

482.62786.63 63%1.321.63
Trade PayablesOperating ExpensesTrade payables tunover ratio (times)

280.{11E00.25
-50/o6.166.42

Current Ass€ls_

Current Liabilties
Reveoue fromNet capital tumover ratio (times)

,15 Corpor.tc Soci.l R.sponsibilitY

The Company does not fall uod€r th€ criteria prescribed ry's I 35 of The Compaflies Ac! 20 t 3 regarding the applicability of

;hi;;6#l;il R;sponsibilitv), henc'e the same is not applicable to the companv'

Det.ils ofCrypto Curr.ncy or VirturlCtrrrencv

The company has not t ad€d or inYested h;;i;'currency or Virtual Cunency during the financial year 2023-24

$ll3":'ff;tlJl;i:1."H'."fiJ:#t13iliT"nce crause (8?) orsection 2 orfte Acr read wirh companies (Restnction on

number oi Layers) Rules' 2Ol7 is nol apPlicable'

Comptirnc. rvith rpprov'd Sch'mc(s) of Arreng'mcnts

The Company has oot made any arrangements as p€r Sec 230 ofThe companies Act' 2013'

Utilisrtiotr of Borrowcd funds rod shrr' nrcmium:

(A) The Company has no'uo'un""a o' toanla ot'inlested funrls leither borrowed funds or shate premium or any other sources or

kind of firds) rc arv o,no *'"on1'' o"nui"t;ti'ffiilffi;ign "ntities 
(lntermediales) with the understanding specified in

:ffi:i$;iiliffi t"'gututotv t"q'l'",n""t of schedule ttl of fte companres AcL 2013'

(B)The Company has not r€ceived any fund from any person{s) or entiry(ies)'-rn^cludins foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

undentading specified i' ttu*" t*t"'o' aaiiio"l""'g'[ilty''"q"i"t*t of Schedule Ill of tie Companies Act' 2013'
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0.02
Retum on Capital employed (%)

3.15



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NO TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50. The company is a small and Medium Sized company (SMC) as defined in the General Instructions- 
in i"rp""i oficcounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013, read

with iule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. Accordingly, the Company has complied

with the Accounting Standards as applicable to a small and Medium sized company.

51. In the opinion ofthe Management, current assets, loans and advances shall realize a value as shown

in the fialance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of business'

52. Balances of current assets, loans and advances and current liabilities are subject to

confi rmatior/reconciliation.

53. Balance ofcash, Inventory and Property, Plant & Equipment are as physically verified and certified

by the Management.

54. There was no amount overdue to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) as on 31st March,- 
ZOZi gVrNil). MSMEs have been identified based on information available with the Company.

55. Losses on account of impairment ofassets have not been recognized in the books'

56.TheCompanydidnothaveanypendinglitigation(s)asonthedateoftheBalanceSheet,which
would adversely impact its financial position'

57. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses.

58.TheCompanyoperatesinasinglesegmentandsincethecompanydoesnotfallunderLevelt-- 
""i"g".y 

i, aefined by the Couniil of i-cRI, no additionat disclosure under Accounting Standard -
17, "segment Reporting" is required.

59. Related PartY Disclosure

r) List of Re lated pa rties:

K erna

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

D Perso nel KM

Kamalakannan Ellan govan

Shaji KalladaYil Mathew
Rappai Vareed ChriaYath

Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon

Mohammed FaYaz Salam

- Director
- Director

- Director
- Director
- Director



ii) En rlses where KMP/ their relatives have got substantia I influence:

a) lvfls. INKEL Renewable Energy Private Limited is a company in which Mr'

Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Director'

Ul W.. fNfff- LimiteJ is a company in which Mr' Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a

Managing Director.
c) M/s. INKEL lnfrastructure Development Projects Limited is a company in which

Mr. Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Nominee Director'

d) Mis. INKES Trade Cenire Limited is a company in which Mr' Kamalakannan

Ellangovan is a Nominee Director'

"l rtii.. frKEi-gKK Roads Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Kamalakannan

Ellangovan is a Director.
W, fr".utu lnfrastructure Fund Management Limited is a company in which Mr'

Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Managing Director'

i*. rNigl--rslDCProjects t-imite-d ii a company in which Mr' Kamalakannan

Ellangovan is aNominee Direclor'

liit'ilo**n*rs (Sec 25 Company) is a company in which Mr' Kamalakannan

Ellangovan is a Director'
rrii.'f".ii btr".icals and Hydro Power Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

Kalladayil Mathew is a Whole Time Director'

iw, v(r- Estates India Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

f)

c)

h)

i)

i)
is a Director.

fl itait vi<i-pi".iects India Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director'

U iWr d-"i elevators India Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

KalladaYil is a Director.

.) il;GS i;frastructure Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
,) iW I V $;rtments Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil is

a Director.

") MV;S-;;;"" Properties Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
p) it4A ti;hi;j.- Properties India Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

KalladaYil is a Director.

O il;;V['i Brilders India Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director' 
vhich Mr' Shaji Kalladayitr) lvl/s Sealand Builders Private Limited is a company tn v

is a Director.
,l i,al Viii i"f.rstructure Products Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

Kalladavil is a Director.
ffiJ;ffi;i-.,i"", *o properties private Limited is a company in which Mr.

Shaji KalladaYil is a Director'

rWl s."tf,utftla. Constructions and Properties Private Limited is a company tn

which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil is a Director'

t4s VKL Resorts India Priuate iimited is a company in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
*) i;;;i;; Resorts Private Limited is a companv in which Mr' Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
x) M/s JVK Hotels and Hospitatity Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

0

u)

v)

Kalladayil is a Director.



y) M/s APPU S Travel and Tourism Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.

,) il; v( Mt"G and Logistics Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.

-) W, Ct ungunacherry Properties Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.
uUl iiiv ii""f Fabrication and Galvanizing (lndia) Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Managing Director'

"") 
il;JGei and Galvanizing Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director'

aal if.iiill--iff Roads Private Limited is a company in which Mr'Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Director'

""1 
fffi.Ei Infrastructure Development frojects Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director'

fO Cfr"*rnu" Financial Services Limited is a company in which Mr'Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Director'
sstiowDamika Leasing Gold Finance Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director'

hh)iNKEi Limited is a company in which Mr'Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a

Director.
iil fNGf--fSfDC Projects Limited is a company in which Mr'Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Nominee Director'

ii) Beh; Bunkering and Shipchandling Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director'

n lNo.f.i-noots (Sec 25 company) is a company in which Mr'Jayakrishnan Krishna

Menon is a Director.
ll) n iKEi Renewable Energy Private I imited. is^ a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Nominee Director'

.rl iu["rt o.. Hospital and Research Center Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnu, Krirhru Menon is a Shareholder'

n r) arrli'no.es Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Rappai Vareed

ChiraYath is a Director.
oo) NKEL Infrastructure Deve lopment Projects Limited is a company in which Mr'

Rappai Vareed Chirayath is a Director'

pp) il.riL[i iirnit"a is a company in which Mr Rappai Vareed Chiravath is a

Director' 
vhich Mr' RaPPai Vareed

qq) INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited is a company ln \

ChiraYath is a Nominee Director'

rr) N;;il-il.ts (Sec 25 company) is a company in which Mr Rappai Vareed

ss)

Chirayath is a Director.
ifr.Ef- n"n"*uble Energy Private Limited is a company in which Mr' Rappai

Vareed Chirayath is a Nominee Director'

il;;; EnJrty Services LLP is a company in which Mr' Mohammed Favaz
n)

Salam is a Designated Partner'

,,rf fufooo"n, Eneriy Soluti,cns Private Limited is a company in which Mr'
' 

Mohammed Fayaz Salam is a Director'

"") 
ii;;;; Gouf Sh"d Farms Private Limited is a companv in which Mr'

Mohammed Fayaz Salam is the Managing Director'



iiD Associate/ Holdine ComDanv:

i')

a) lvI/s. Seabird Seaplane Private Limited (Associate)

Promoter Companies:

Inkel Limited
M FAR Enterprises Private Limited
VKL Estate India Private Limited

ID Balances outstandin rvith Related Parties
(INR in Lakhs)

Figures in brackets represent amounts for previous year. Related party relationships are as identified

by the Management and the same are relied upon by the auditors.

a)
b)
c)

Particulars Enterprises where KMP/
Relative have substantial

influence
(Inkel Limited)

Associate Company
(Seabird Seaplane
Private Limited)

Total

Nil
(Nil)

269.14
(269.t4)

269.14
(269.t4)

Loans & Advances Nit
(Nil)

301.8s
(301.8s)

301.85
(301.8s)

Investment in
Preference Shares

1600
( l 600)

Nil
(Nil)

Reimbursement of
Expenses payable

12.38
(8.72)

Nil
(Nil)

12.38
(8.72)

Guarantee
Commission
payable

Nil
(Nil)

44.87
(38.44)

Reimbursement of
Expenses paid

(Nir)
(t4.47)

Nil
(Nil)

0.00
(14.47)

Guarantee
Commission paid

6.00
(s.oo)

Nit
(Nil)

6.00
(s.00)

Consultancy
Charges

0.67
(Nir)

Nil
(Nil) 0.67

Software expense
0.32
(Nil)

Nil
0,iil)

0.32
(Nil)

Investment in
Equity Shares

1600
( l 600)

44.87
(38.44)



6o.InformationpursuanttotheprovisionsofPartllofschedulelll[Divisionl]ofthe
Companies Act, 2013.

(INR in Lakhs)

For the period
01.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

For the period
01.04.2023 to

31.03.2024

Particulars

84.65

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

NiI

Nil

Nil

Nil

84.65

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

NiI

l. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the

Accounts.

2, Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be-

executed on capital account and not provided for

3. Information on dues to Small Scale Industrial Units

(As certified bY the Management)

a) Cases ofsuppliers who are covered under the 'lnterest
-' 

on OetayeO'fayments to Small Scale and Ancillary

Industrial Undlrtakings Acl, 1993, which have come

to the notice ofthe ComPanY'

b) Amount outstanding for payment to SSIs

c) Name of SSIs to whom the Company owes.a sum

exceeding Rs. I lakh which is outstanding for more

than thirtY daYs.

4. The information required under Part ll of Schedule III'' 
[Division I] of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent

applicable io the Company are given below:

a) Value of imports calculated on C'l'F' basis by the

Company during the accounting period in respect

of- i{aw materials, Components and spare parts

and CaPital goods

b) Expenditure in Foreign Cunency during the-' 
u""ounting period on account of royalty' know-

how, proflsiional and consultation fees' interest'

and other matters'

") iij romt value of all imported raw materials' spare
' 

parts and components consumed during the

accounting Period and;

) alue of all nd eno S raw mater al s

d
S and com nents S m ar

u

ol't S um and

spare

Nil

Nil

Total



Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

1.40
0.40
0.1 6

Nil
Nil

0.20
4.1I

(66.8e)

30000000
(0.22)

10

(66.8e)

30000000
(0.22)

l0

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

1 .5s
0.45
Nil

Nil
Nil

0.03
3.06

118.91

30000000
0.40
l0

I I 8.91

30000000
0.40
l0

(iii) The percentage of each to the total consumption'

d) The amount remitted during the accounting period

in foreign currencies on account of dividends'

e) Eamings in Foreign Exchange

5. Foreign Exchange Differences

a) Debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss

bj In respect of forward exchange contracts to be

accounted in the subsequent Years

6. Auditors' Remuneration
a. For Statutory Audit
b. For Tax Audit
c. For Other services

7. Remuneration to Directors

a. Managerial Remuneration
b. Rent

8. Employee Benefit (Disclosure under AS - 15)

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss on account ofdefined contribution plans:

i) Employer's Contribution to ESI

ii) EmploYer's Contribution to PF

9. Earnings Per Share

a) Basic:
i) Profit /(loss) for the Period
ii) Number of EquitY Shares

iii) Earnings Per Share

iv) Face Value Per share

b iluted
i) Profit / (loss) for the Perio
ii) Number of EquitY Shares

iii) Eamings Per Share

iv) Face Value Per share

d

The Company did not default in repayment of loans or borrowing repayment from any financial
61.

institution or banks.



62

63

The arrears of cumulative preference share dividend is INR 1376 Lakhs as at the year-end (Previous

Year - INR 1204 Lakhs) which is not recognized in the Books ofAccounts.

ln the year 2oz2-23, the State Bank of lndia (sBI), sME Branch, Ernakulam advanced a working

capitaiterm loan under the Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) of INR 600 Lakhs to the

Company against the hypothecation of stock, receivables, plant & machinery and fixed assets is

INR 374 Lakhs at the end ofthe year 2023-24. The loan is for a period of60 months and is to be

repaid after a moratorium period of 24 months in 36 installments at an interest rate of 9.25Yo per

annum.

These financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by Schedule III

[Division I] to the Companies Act, 2013.

PreviouS year'S figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year'S

classification.

64
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On behalfofthe Board
For MIV Logistics Private Limited

As per our Audit Report of even date attached.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN o.006138S

ew ak Korah Geo

Partner
Membership No.025e7?' <<186
uorN:Q{},EsQ36 g tA13qD 9E+?

Place: Cochin
Date: 18106/2024

Dr Ellangovan
Director
Dtl.t:05272476

Jo se

Shaji Kall
Director
DN:01866682

( coc*,'

Company Secretary
Membership No. A58228



Korah & Korah
CHARTERED AGCOUNTANTS

IN'Df,PE ENT A ITOR' REPOR

To the Members of MIV Losistics Private Li ited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISt FLOOR, LUCKY STAR BUILDINC, MARKET RoAD, COCHIN - 682 035
Tet : 0484 - 237181 l, 236,1428.

E-mail : inlo@korahandkorah.com I Websitc : www.koralundkorah.com

Opinion

we have audited the accompanying consolidated Financial statements of Mrv LoGIsrICs
PRTVATE LIMTTED ("the company"| which comprise the Barance sheer as at 3ld M iinlizq, tn"
Statement ofProfit and Loss' the Cash Flow Statement and Notes to the financial statements, including
a summary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, exceptfor the effects of the matter described in the Basis for groiiq"a opinion section'ir.r. ."i".t, 6r"
aforesaid Consolidated financial stalements give a trLie anJfaiivie* in conformity with ir," u"i"r"tirgprinciples generally accepted in India;

a) in the case ofthe Balance Sheet, ofthe state ofaffairs of the Company as at March 3r"1,2024;
and

b) in the case ofthe Statement of profit and Loss and cash FIow statement ofthe profit, and its
cash flows.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

'nn::!!u1,-9, 10, company in the equity shares of tros. sea Bird sea prane private Limited amountingto INR 2.70 Crores, is valued at cost wirhout any impai,nent ross. The lrr"rt"" 
"o*pory'h^ 

not
commenced contmercial operations since 2"d Novembei 20t2, being its dare of incorporatioi. ie arso
tmderstand that its creditors have approached the National c"ompany uw rrinunat(uitrl forliquidation of the company. on the basis of these facts, it is construecl thit the investee comparry is no
longer a 'Going concern' and hence the assets 

-of 
the investee company are ro be ualu"i ar ihe n"r

realizable value Q'IRV). In the absence of any auditecl financial statemenrs or the liquidation report,
impairment_in the value of thii inuestment of the contpany cannot be ascerrained by;;. ii;Cr;prry
hod also advanced a loan of INR 3.02 Croris to lvl/s. sea'Bird sea plane private Limited for iniin *
repdyment of principal is seen. The Contpany has not made any provision for the realiiability of the
loan advanced-. Further the Company has not accountedfor the inirest due on rhe said roor. Tirrilor",
s.ince the workoutfor impairmen_t of the equity investminr has not been provided for aiit, *,i oi, ,o,in a posilion to comment on the impacl of such impairment or reaiizability on the Consolidated
Financial Statenents in this regard.

We conducled our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act"). our responsibilities undei those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section and in Appendix A to our report. we are independent ofthe company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together witt *e eitricat
requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe Consolidated financial statemen-ts under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit ividence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the.other. Information. The other Information

""-p.i#,f,J 
i"f.rmation included in the'Board's Report including.Annexures to Board's l:f,11 

b"
does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our Audit Repon thereon. our oplnlon on

ihe Consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other lnformation and we do not express any

form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other Information is materially inconsistent

with the Consolidated financialitatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have peiformed, we conclude that there.is a material

misstatement of thi, Oth". Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard

ResponsibilitiesofManagement/ThoseChargedWithGovernancefortheConsolidatedFinancial
Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities foi the Audit of the Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

^ u *irof" are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit

."po.t tt ut in"tua"s our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always. detect a material

,,i..tut"*"nt *tl"n it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud oi error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be €xpected to influence the economic decisions

ofusers taken on the basis ofthese Consolidated financial statements'

with respect to the additional responsibilities for the audit ofthe consolidated financial statements as

required under SA 700, refer 'Appendix A''

The company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Act, with

;;;;; i;',hJ pr"paration of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of

ii"-i*"".;"f position, finan"ial performance and cash flows-in accordance with the accounting

orincioles eenerally accepted in lnii4 including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133

[ffi;i;;,;;;iit, nur" z or,n" companies (lccounts) Rules,20l4. This responsibilitv also includes

maintenanceofadequateaccountingrecordsinaccordancewiththeprovisionsof-theActfor
#;il;; of th" 

'urr",. of the dompany and for preventing and detectin€. frauds and other

;;;T;ri,*, setecrion and application of app.opriate. iccounting policies; making judgments and

estiirates that are reasonable and prudent; und dtiign, implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls, that weie operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and_ completeness

oitt 
" 

u""ounting records, relevant to the prJparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial

,,rr"."r" ,r*, glre a true and fair view ani are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or elTor.
i" pr"p".irg the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for 

_assessing 
the

Coipiry'r"uUitity to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable' matters related to going

concern and using the going concern-bu.ii ofaccounting unless Management either intends to liquidate

ih" Corpuny o.6 ceaie operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so'

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process'



1

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I . As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ("the order") issued by the central

Govemrnentoflndiaintermsofsub-section(11)ofsectionl43oftheAc!wegiveinthe
'Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order'

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowtedge aJ belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit'

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as appears from our examination ofthose Books ofAccount'

c. The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow statement dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount'

d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us' the-aforesaid

consolidated financial statei.rents comply with the Accounting Standards specified under

section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4.

e. on the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 3l$ March, 2024,

takenonrecordbytheBoardofDirectors,noneoftheDirectorsaredisqualifiedason3l
March,2024, fiom being appointed as a director in terms ofsection 164(2) ofthe Act'

withrespecttotheothermatterstobeincludedintheAuditor,sReportinaccordancewithRule
if 

"i,f,J 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 in our opinion and to the best ofour

information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The company has disclosed the impact ofpending litigations on its financial position in its
' 

consolidated financial statements. Refer Nols 56 to the consolidated financial statements;

b)TheCompanydoesnothavealylong-termcontracts'includingderivativecontractsfor' which theie are any material foreseeabie losses. -Rgfer Note 57 to the Consolidated financial

statements;

c)TherewerenoamountswhichwererequiredtobetransferredtothelnvestorEducationand
Protection Fund bY the ComPanY:

d) (i) The Management has represented that, to^the.best of.its knowledge and belief' other than

asdisclosedinthenotestotheaccounts,nofundshavebeenadvancedorloanedorinvested
[.iit ". 

r-, borrowed funds or share premium or any_ other sources or kind of funds) by

th" Cornpuny to or in any other personls) or entity(ies), including foreign .entities

i:;intermJaia.ieS,), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

ihe Inte.mediury ihall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

entities identifi;d in any mannei whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('Ultimate

neneficiaries"; o, p.orid" any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(ii)TheManagementhasrepresented,that,tothebestofitsknowledgeandbelief'other
it rn as disclosid in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company

f.



e)

from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding Parties")' with.the

;'J;;i;g,;ethe. reco.dei in *riting-or otherwise' that the Company shall' whether'

ai.".ii, o. inlirectlv, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

;il;;;;' ;; ;; o,iLehalf of the Funding Partv ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide anv

gr*-t*, selurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries'

(iii)Based on audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate. in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

r"pres"ntutiont una". irb-"luu." (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement'

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of

the provisions of section 123 ofthe Act'

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software for maintaining its books ofaccount for the financial year ended 31" March 2024

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated

thoughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software' Further' during

the course ofour audit we did not come across any instance ofthe audit trail feature being

tampered with.

f)

, SincetheCompanyisaprivatelimitedcompany,theprovisionsofSectionlgTdonotapplyand
hence, we do not rePort on the same

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0061385

Deepak Korah George
Partner
M No.255036
UDIN: 242550368KH8GE735'I

Place: Cochin
Date: 18fr June 2024



Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe consolidated Financial Statem ents (continued"')

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

proflssional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perlorm audit procedures responsive to those risks. and

obtain audit evidence that is suffici-ent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk

of noi a"t""ting u material misstatement res;liini from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

",'or, 
u, f.uud-*uy involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations' or the

override of intemal control.

ii. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

thatareappropriatein-thecircumstances.Undersectionl43(3)(i)oftheAct,wearealso
.esponsibti fo. expressing our opinion on whether the Cgmpany has adequate intemal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls'

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by Maragement'

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis-of accounting

una, Ua."a on tt e audiievidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going

concem. If we conctude that a iraterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention^in our

audit report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such

disclosuies are inadequate, to modifo our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

olluin"a up to the date ofour audii report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern'

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements,

including the discloiures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the

underlyi-ngtransactionSandeventsirramamerthatachievesfairpresentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned

.""p" ""J,i.irg 
ofthe audit and-significani audit_findings, including any significant deficiencies in

int.'mut 
"ont 

ot 6at we identifu duririg our audit. We also provide those charged with govemance with

u ro,.,,"n, that we have 
"ornpli"d 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

"o*.uni"ul"withthemallre.lationshipsandothermattersthatmayreasonablybethoughttobearonour independence, and where applicable, related safeguards'

APPENDIX A'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

FRN

Korah George
Partner
M No. 255036
UDIN: 24255036BKH8G87354

PIace: Cochin
Date : I 8'r' June 2024

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants



AnnexureAtothelndependentAuditor'sReportreferredtoinparagraphlunder
on .Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our Independent

Audit ileport of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of MIV

Logistics irivate Limited for the year ended 31't March,2024

AsrequiredbytheCompanies(Auditor,sReport)order,20.20(..ordel,),issued-bytheC^entral
Government of India in terms of iub-section (1i) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such

checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we

further report that:

I

2

3

a) The Company is in the process of updaring the recoyl sltying fuil particulars' including
-' 

qu*titoi*" antails ani sinarion'as'requiid under Schedule II of the Act, of Property, Ppmt

and Equipmenl and Intangible Assets.

b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management at

reasonable intervak. noweiei, since the maintenance of proper records are still underway'

material discrepancies, if any could not be ascertainable'

c) According to the information and explanations given -to us and on the basis of our
- 

examinati-on of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other

than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are

Joty 
"*""ut"a 

in iavour ofthe lessee) disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are

held in the name of the ComPanY.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including fught ofUse

assets) or intangible assets during the year'

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending again:t the Company for holding any
' benami prope"rty under the Benami Transaitions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.

TheCompanydoesnothaveanyinventoryandhencereportingunderclause(ii)(a)oftheorder
is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or

;;;? ;;; i;;;t o,. aduun"", in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured' to companies' firms'

ii*it"a tiuUilty pu.tnerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a)

to 3(iii)(f) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' provisionsof Section

itS und fSO of the Act, ii respect of loans, investments, guarantees' and security have been

complied.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year and hence the

directives issued by the Reserve Ban[ ofindia and the provisions ofsections 73 to 76 or any other

relevant provisions ofthe Act and rules framed there under are not applicable'

The Company is not required to mainlain cost records prescribed by the Central Govemment

uni". .ub'-s""tion (l) of iection l4g of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) ofthe Order is not

applicable to the ComPanY.

,l

5

6



7

8.

9

a) According to the information and explanations fumished to us and according to our
-' 

"*u.inuti-on 
of the books of account, thi Company is regular in depositing wlh an-groqriate

authorities undisputed statutory dues including inciuding b_oods and Services Tax, Provident

funJ, ernptoy"";s State Insurlnce, Income-TL, Duty of Customs' Duty of Excise and any

otherstatuiory dues applicable to it other than Labour Welfare Fund (LWF)'

D) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in"' 
."rp""t of"i*ome tax, sales tax, Goods and Servtes Tax,- Customs Duty' ExciseDuty and other

material statutory dues were in arrears, as at 3 I st March, 2024 for a period of 1qe tt1a.n ;11
montt. fro* the date they became payable, except for Labour Welfare Fund (LllF) which is

not quantifable bY the ComPanY.

c)AccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventouSandonthebasisofourexamination' 
of the recirds of the Company, no statutory duei relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident

iund, employ"es' state iniurance, income-tax, sales+ax, service tax' duty of customs' duty of

e*ciie, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have been deposited on account

of any dispute.

Accordingtotheinforrnationandexplanationsgiventousandonthebasisofourexamination
ofthe rec-ords ofthe company, the company hai not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,

pr"ri"r.iy unrecorded u, in"o*" in ttre booXs of account, in the tax assessments under the

in"o." Tu* Act, 196l as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on

paragraph 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company'

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of

interest thereon to anY lender.

b) Accbrding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit"' 
;;;J;;;r, ;e report that the Company has not bein declared willtul defaulter by any bank or

hnancial institution or govemment or any government authority'

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has-' 
utiiir"air," money obtaineiby way of term loans during the year for the purpos€s for which

they were obtained.

d)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations.giventous,.andtheproceduresperformedby- ;;, ";J;r"- 
.verall examination oftire Consolidated financial statements ofthe Company, we

."pon rf,ut no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the

CompanY.

e)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiven.tousandonanoverallexaminationofthe
Consolida'ted financial statements ofthe Compiny, the Company has not taken any funds from

any entity or person on account of or to m"ei thi obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

[i".t ,"nir.".'au.ing the year ended March 31", 2024. Hence clause 3(ix)(e) ofthe order is not

applicable.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and proced,*:'::l:i:l.ll"^1'-,Y"
report thal the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securltles held ln

its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies'



10.

ll.

13.

14.

16.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the based on the examination of
th-e- records, the company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the order is not appiicable
to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year and hence the question ofwhether the requirements
ofsection 42 and section 62 ofthe Act have been complied with and the funds raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly paragraph
3(x)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company

a) Based on the audit procedures performed and representations obtained from Management, we
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

12.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 ofthe Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule l3 ofCompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4 with
the Central Govemment.

c) As represented to us by the Managemen! there were no whistle-blower complaints received
during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
made by the company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and lgg of
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank oflndia
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank oflndia. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

c) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as per the provisions ofthe Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (d) ofthe Order is not applicable.

a) In our opinion and based on our emmination, the Company's internal audit system needs to be
augmented.

b) Also, as per Section 138 of the Act, since no Intemal Audit is applicable to the Company, we
have not considered any Internal Audit report.

15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons comected
with them during the period under review. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.



17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

19. On the basis ofour understanding ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
Consolidated financial statements, knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management plans,
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period ofone year from the balance sheet date.

20. The Company does not fall within the prescribed limits for the purpose ofsection 135 ofthe Act.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx) ofthe Order is not applicable.

21, The provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to Consolidated financial
statements, and hence we do not report on the same.

For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN 006

Deepak Korah George
Partner
M No. 255036
IJDIN: 24255036BKH8GE7354

Place: Cochin
Date: l8th June 2024



J\{IV LOGISIICS PRIvAI'E LINII'TED & I1'S ASSOCIATE

ICIN Number- U6J0l2KL20l lPTC02E6l9l

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3lst lUarch, 202,1

On behalf of the Board

For tlV Logistics Privrte Limitcd

In Lakhs

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Korah & Korah

Chanered Accountanls

FRN No.0061385

@-
Dr.K Ellangovatr

Directo.

D :0527 16

!

Shaji Krlladryil
Director

DIN:01866682

Dcepak Korsh George, ACA
Panner

N,lembership No. oe{el+ Lg5O%
u DIN ia42q:<O36 qLn1qe ilf4

Company Secretary

Membenhip No. A58228

Pa rt ic u I:i rs
Note
No:

Figures rt the end ofthe
current reporting period

Figures at the cnd ofthe
previous reporlirg period

4,600.00

(2,299.40)
4,600.00

(2,418.00)

374.00 600.00

16.11

2.94

482.62

329.33

I6.15

498.20

1,505.61 4,07{.0E

78',7.24

991.26

147.26

178.05

249.50

34.88

873.01

1,053.53

t47.56

192.94

249.50

33.18

663.99

54.61

369.t8

23.6t

441.31

641.09

3i4.07
75.83

3.505.61 1,07t.08

I l.a
I l.b

7

8

9

t0

3

4

5

6

t2
t3
t4
t5

l6
11

l8
l9

I. EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
(l) Shrrcholder's Fund3

(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus

(2) Non - Current Lirbilities
(a) Long - Term Borrowings
(b) t ong - Term Provisions

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings

(b) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of rnicro & small enterprises;

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small ente.prises
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d ) Short- Tenu Provisions

Tot.l Equity and Lilbilitics
II. ASSETS

(l) Nor-Currcnt Assets

(a) Prop€rty Plant and Equipment & lotangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment

ii) Intangible assets

iii) Capital work-in-Prcgess
(b) Non - Curent Invcstmer s

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(d) t ng - Tenn Irans and Advanc.es

(e) Other non-cErcnt assets

(2) Currctrl Assets

(a) Trade Receivables

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(c) Shon -Term lrans and AdvaDces

(d) Other Current Assets

Totrl Ass.fs

IIL Significsnt AccountiDg Policies & Notes forming part of
Finrncirl Ststem€nts

Place: Cochin

Date: 1810612024

484.35

290.43

2.93

I &2

,W?t-



Particulers
Note
No.

For the period
01.0,1.202f to

31.03.202,1

I. Revenue from Operations

II. Other Income

llL Totsl Incomc

IV. ExpeNes:

DLect Expenses

Employee Benefi t Expense

FirEnce Costs

D€pleciation and Amonisation

Other Expenses

lv.Totil Exp.Dscs

V. Profit Befor. Trx (III - IV)
VI. Tu Etpctrsc:
(l) Curent Tax

(2) D€fened tax

!'II. Profit / (Loss) for lhe pcriod (V-Vl)

VIIL Profit / (Loss) from Associ.te

lX. Profit / (Loss) for the period (\'lI+\'lll)

X. Erroitrg pcr Equity Shrrc:

I trt e*i"
| (2) Diluted

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

1,800.25

50.92

1,618.19

51.93

1,851.17 t,730.12

786.63

69.08

46.97

158.67

656.01

63',t.06

74.56

76.45

163.28

829.21

1,111.36 t,780.62

133.81 -49.90

14.90 16.99

I t8.91 -66.89

(0.30) -0.30

1t8.61 -67.19

0.40

0.40

(0.22)

(0.22)

MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LI]\II'I'ED & ITS ASSOCIATE

IClN Numbcr- U630l2KL20l lPTC02E839l

Consolidrted St8temenl of Profit and Loss for the ycar €nded Slst Mrrch' 2024

On behrlf of the Bo&rd

For 1\llV Logistics Private Limited

<=-
Dr.K Ellergovrn
Di.ector

DIN:05272476

Shaji lladayil

(In Lrkhs)

As per our Audit Report ofeven date attached

For Korah & Korah

Cha(ered Accountants

FRN No.006138S

Deepak Korah George, ACA
PartnerDirector

DIN: 01866682 Membership No. 036€?? 296036
uDrN: aa 294035Stcruqe ?3Sq

J v

Company Secretary

Membership No. 458228

Place: Cochin

Dal3: 18/0612024

For thc period
01.0.1.2022 to

31.03.2023

2',t

,* ,/



MIY LOGISTICS PRIvATf, I,IMITED & I'tS ASSOCIATE

[crN Number- U63012KL201 tpTC028839l

Consolidated Statement ofCash Flows for th€ ycar ended Slst l\tarch,2024
(ln Lekhs)

Particulars
For the period
01.0,1.2023 to

31.03.2024

For the period
01.0,t.2022 to

31.03.2023

158.67

3.86

0.29

46.97

(5.73)

t 33.80

163.28

4.07

3.60

16.45

(5.r3)

(49.91)

(2t6.69)
(r5.r l)
52.22

1t7.86

208.40

22.94
(19.34

192.36

(179.58)

(495.26)

(1.7r)

38.90

(0.50

(r 95.80)

(147.87)

171.95

2t2.00

(111.72)(,158.57)

(300.29)

(6.60)

232.61

2r2.61(J06.89)

( 15.62)

5.tl

( r6.58)

5.73

(10.8s) (10.49)

(1.70)

(226.00\

(46.97\

r76.32

27 4.93

(76.4s)
(211.61) 37.1.80

596.95

50.13

(592.4r)

641.09

611.095J.67

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pmlia Befor. Taxe!
Adjustment for :

Depft ciation and Amortisatio[
Provision for f-€ave E[cashments

Provision for Gratuity

FioaDce Costs

Int€rest Incom€

Op€rrting profit brforc Working Capit.l Ch.rges
Changes in Working Capital

Adjustnents for ( Incrcas€ )\Decrcase in Operating Assets

Trade Receivables

Short term loans and advances

Other Current Assets

Adjustments for incrersc (Dccrerse ) in Operrting Li.bilities
Short Term Bomowings

Trade Payables

Other Curent Liabilities

Short term Provisions

Cash gererrted from Operrtiols
Taxes Paid

L€ave encashment paid

Net crsh Provided by Opcrrlitrg .ctivities -( A )

CASH FLOWS FROM IN}'ESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of pmpeny Plant & Equipment

Other Non curent Asset -Secuiity deposit received

lnvestme s in Equity sharps

Transfer fiom Capital Work ln Progress

sale of Assets

Investments in lease hold rights

hterest received

Ner C8sh fiom lnvesting activilies - ( B )
CASH FLO1VS FRONI FINANCINC ACTIVITIES
Lrng term loans and advanc€s

Other Non curletlt Assets

ln 
puyr*, oru-

Finaoc€ Costs

Net Crsh Used iD Finrncing Activities - ( C )

Net iocre.sc /( decresse ) in Crsh rnd Crsh equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Crsh rnd bsnk brhtrce rt the eod ofthe yesr



Comprises

Cash in Hand

Brlance With brnks

In Deposit Accounts

0.05

5l.l I

3.52

0.07

230.65

416.36

Cesh ud Benk Brlanc. rt the end ofthe y.ar 5,1.67 6t7.09

On behrlfofth. Board
For NlMogistics Privote Limited

Dr.K ngovrn

As per our Audit Report of even date attached.

For Korah & Korrh
Chafiered Accountants

FRNNo.0061385
6

0c

\

Director

DIN:05272476

Dircctor

DIN:01866682

Deepak Korah
Partnea

Membership No. 036077 Lqb

J

UDIN'2A2sso36 gr<HBq e? 3i^1

Place: Cochin

Datei 1810612024

w
Compafly S€crctary

Membership No. 458228



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATtr LIMITED & ITS ASSOCIATE

NOI'E .3 STIARE CAPITAL (ln Lakhs)

The authorized, issued subscribed snd fully paid up share capital comprises of equity & preference shar* with a par value ofRs.l0/-
each as follows:

The Company has one class of Equity Shares having facc value per Share of Rs. | 0/- and Redecmable Preference shares having face

value per share of Rs. I 0/- cach

it r ofshares outstaod

Eauity Shrr€s

Thc Company has one class ofEquity sharcs having face value ofRs.lOi each .Each shareholder is cligible for one vote per share held

The Dividend ifany, proposed by Board ofDirectors is subject to appmval by Shareholders in the ensuing Annual Ceneral meeting

,except in the cas€ of interim dividend. In the event ofliquidatiorL tie equity sharc holders are eligible to receive thc remaining asses ol
the company after dist bution of all preferential amounts ir proportion to their shareholding.

10.75%o RedeemAble Pr€f€rcnc€ shares

Redeeruable Prcference shares carry a fixed cumulative dividend of 10.7570ald can be converted in to Equity shares at the option ofthe

holder after the period of l0 Years. (Year ending 2025 atld 2026 respectively based on the issue date ofpreference shares )

Perticulars

ltgures at the end ol lne
curretrt reporting period

Figures rt the end ofthe
previous reporting p€riod

Amount No.ofShares Amount

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized

40000000 Equity Sha.es ofRs.l0/- each (Previots year: 40000000
Equity Shates of Rs. I 0/- each)

20000000 10,75% Redeemable Preference shares of tu.10/-each
(Previous year: 20000000 10.7596 rcdee able prelerence shares of
k.l0/- eoch)

Issued, Subscribed ard Plid up

30000000 Equity Sharcs ofRs.l0/- each tully paid-up (Previous

yeat 30000000 Equiry Shares of Rs. I 0/- each)

16000000 10.75% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.l0/- each

(Prefious year: 16000000 redeenable prefercnce shares of
k.l0/- each)

4.00,00.000

2,00,00,000

4,000

2,000

6,00,00,000 6,000 6,00,00,000 6,000

3,00,00,000

1,60,00,000

3,000

t,600

3.00,00,000 3,000

1.60,00,000 ,1,600 16000000 {,600

Figures st the end of the
previous reporting period

l'igures at th€ end ofthe
curre[t rcporting period

No. ofShares Amounl No.ofShares

Psrticulars

3,0003,00,00,000 3,000 3,00,00,000

3,00,00,000 3,0003,00,00,000 3,000

Equity Shres
Number of shares outstanding at the begin-ning of the year

Shares issued during the period

Shares bought back during the period

Number of shares Outstalding at lhe end of the year

1.60,00,000 r,600 r,60,00,000 1,600

1,600.1,60,00,000 {,600 ,1,60,00,000

10.757r Redeemeble Pr.ferctrcc shrres

Number ofshares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares issued during the period

Shares bought back during the period

Number ofshar€s Outstandhg at lhe erd of the year

No. ofShrres

4,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

4,000

2,000

r,60,00,000 t,600



Shrres held by Holding Company, Subsidiary Company ,

Associrtcs .tc
Shares held by

Its Holding Co. & its Ultimate Holding Co.

Subsidiaries of is Holding Co. & ils Ultimate Holding Co.

Associates ofits Holding Co. & Its Ultimate Holding Co.

Nil
NiI
NiI

Nit

Nil
Nit

Nil

Nil
NiI

Nil
Nit
Nit

Shrrcs hcld by cecb sh.rcholder holdiog more th.n 57. shrrcs

Eouitv Shares

INKEL Linited - 39.43% (Prcvious Year 39.43 %)
M FAR Enterpriscs PvtI'Id-25.40o/o(P\ 25.40 y.)

VKL Estate India Prt Ltd - 15.17 o/o(P y 15.11 y")

Shri. YusuffaliM A - 10%(PY l0W
Shri. J K Menon - 5 o/o (P Y 5 7o)

Shri. Siddeek Ahmed tlaji Pamtharayil - 5 % (P Y 5 %)

10.757o Redccmablc Prcfercncc shares

INKEL Lirnited - 100'/"

r,18,29,714

76,20,286

45,50,000

30,00,000

15,00,000

15,00,000

t,183

762

455

300

150

150

|,t8,29,714
76,20,286

45,50,000

30,00,000

15,00,000

15,00,000

t,183

762

455

300

150

150

1,60.00,000 t,600 1,60,00,000 t,600

Dctrils ofSh.rB h.ld by Promot.r/ Promot.r Group rt th. erd
of ahc Yerr
Eouitv Shares ofRs.lO/-cach fullv oeid

INKEL Limited - 39.43%(Previous Year 39.43 7o)

M FAR Entelprises P!.t Ltd - 25.40 o/. (P Y 25.40 Vo)

VKL Estate India Pvt Ltd - 15-11 %(P Y l5.l'1 yo)

l0.75yo Redeemable Preference sheres

INKEL Linlired - 100%

1.18.29.714

76,20,286

45,50,000

l,183

162

455

t,t8,29,114
16,20,286

45,50,000

1,183

162

455

2,40,00,000

1,60,00,000

2,400

1,600

2,40,00,000

1,60,00,000

2,400

1,600

,t,00,00,000 ,1,000 4,00,00,000 d,000



Particulars
Figures at thc end ofthe
currant rcporting pcriod

Figures st th€ end ofthe
previous reporting period

Surplus

Opening Balance

Current period profiti (loss)

Closing Balanc-e

Totrl Reserves and Surplus

(2,418.00)

I 18.61

(2,350.81)

-67.t9
(2,299.39) (2,418.00)

(2,299.391 (2,418.00)

MIV LOGTSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED & ITS ASSOCIATE

[CIN Number- U630l2KL20l 1PTC028839]

NOTE-4 RESERVES AND SI]RPI-I]S

(ln Lakhs)

NOTE - 5 LONG TERI\'I BORROWINCS

NOTE.6 LONG-TERM PROvISIONS

NOTE.7 SIiORT TURM ITORROWINGS

Particuhrs

Figurcs rt lhe end ofthe
currcnt rcporting period Figures at the end ofthe

previous reporting p€riod

Curent Maturities of L.ong- Term Borrowi gs 2.94 498.20

2.91 49E.20

Particuhrs
Figures at the end ofthe
current reporting period

Figures at the end ofahe
previous reporting period

(Duing the Jinonciol year 2022-23, a loan vas received under the

Gxarunleed Emergeacy Credit Line (GECL) by way ofsecutitizatioh
ofthe Company's assets. The loon islor a petiod of60 nonths v,)hich

is repayable after a moratoriun period oJ24 nonths in 36 nonlhly
installrnents. lnterctt of 9.2501 per annun is applicable)

114.00 600.00

37,1.00

l'articulsrs
Figures at the end ofthe
currert reporting period

Figures at the end ofthc
previous reporting period

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for lrave Encashment

Total Long-Tcrm Provisions 16.17

Securcd Loro
Term lran from State Bank Oflndia

600.00

1.67

8.50



Prrticulars

Figures at the cnd
of ahe current

reporting pcriod

Figures rt thc
erd of the
prcvious

reporting period

Othcrs

(A) Less thrn one ycsr

Sundry Cr€ditors

Advance from CustomeN / Service
providervcontractors

Totrl -A

(B) Morc ThrD On. Ycrr
Sudry Credilors

Advance from Custome.s / Ssrvice
provideN/Contracton

Experse Payable

Totrl -B

416.18

0.87

378.09

0.89

417.05 178.98

65.57 105.35

65.57 r0s.l5

182.62 d8{.J6

NOTE .8. TRADE PAYABLES

Note {.1 Trrd. Pryrbl.s

Outrtrnding for following periods rfter due drtc of

NOTE - 9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

m€nt (ln Lekhs)

Above 3 yellrs 'I otalLess lhan I yesr I to 2 ycars 2 to 3 YearsPerticulrrs

MSME

2.35 42.20 482.62380.80 5',1.27Othen

Disputed Dues MSME

Disputed dues Others

8.8J 484.36462.73 9.59

Particulars

Figures rt the end

of the curr€nt
reporting p€riod

Figures at the
.nd of th.
previous

reporling period

Retention Money payable

Statutory Dues

Security Deposit/Eanest Mooey Deposit

Expense Payable

Salary & Allowances payable

Sub-kase Rent Payable - CPT

Sub-Irase Peoalty Payable - CPT

Totd Long-Tcrm Provisions

3.55

7.2t

t06.24

23.10

0.08

50.54

138.60

1t5

7.9t

73.82

20.26

0.08

46.20

138.60

329.32 290.12

3.t9
I



NOI'I] -IO SHORT TERM PRO}ISIONS

^.OTE. 
I2 NON CURR,ENT INVEST]ITENT

Diminution in ealue has nol been provided in the absence ofa propetfair ealue. lnsolvency Resolution Process initiated
agaiwt the Associate Comwny.

NOTE. 13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Perticulars
Figul.es rt the cnd ofthe
current reporting period

Figurcs st the end ofthe
previous reporting period

Provision for l-eave Encashment

Provision For Gratuity

Provision for Bonus & Exgratia

Totel Short-T€rm Provisions

5.93

8.06

2.11

0.16

0.10

2.67

16.16 2.93

Prrticulsrs
Figures at the end ofth€
curreltt reporting pcriod

Figures at (he end ofthe
previous reporting period

Itrvestmeots in Equity lostnrrncrts (Unquotcd)

Ir Associrt. Compony - Seabird Sca Planc Private Limited

Unsecured considered good

Fully paid equity shales

Fully paid equity shares by loan convenion

|2.12
35.14

I t2.43

35.14

111.51

Particulars
Figures rt the eltd ofthe
current reporting period

Figures at the end of the
previous reporting p.riod

Opening Balsnce

Cur€nt Year (Ass€o/Liabilityl

(r 92.94)

14.90

(178.0{)

(209.93)

16.99

(192.94)

Particulars
Figures at the end ofth€
current reporting p€riod

Figures at thc end oflhe
previous reporling period

a. Secured (Coosidered good)

Security Deposits

b.Unsecured (Considcrcd good)

Total Long-Term Lorns & Advrnces

249.50

219.50 2{9.50

NOTE. I4 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

t17.26

249.50



Psrticulsrs

Figures at the
end of thc

currcnt reporting
p€riod

Figures at the
end of tlre

Previous
rcporting period

Fix.d Dcposit wirh B.nk
Lien Ivtarked FD wirh Commissioner of

Customs 34.88 33.r8

3t.88 33.r 8

NOTE - I5 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

NOTE . I6 TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTf, -16.1 Trede Receivables

Outst.nditrg for follorying periods after due date of payment

NOTE - 17 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

(ln Lekhs)

Figures at the
end ofthe

currcot reporting
period

Figures et thc
etrd ofthe
previous

reporting period

Unsecured, Considercd good

- Over 6 Months

- Others

214.85

449.15

I17.33

329.98

661.00 1J7.31

Prrticuhrs
[,ess thrn 6

MoDthg

6 l\Ionths to I
Yeer

I lo 2 vcars 2 to 3 y€lrs I\lorethrn 3
y€rrs

l otrl

Undisputed considered

good
449.15 9.62 165.55 3.34 36.34 66{.00

Undisputed considered

Doubt tul

Disputed considered

good

Disputed considered

Doubttul

449.t5 L62 165.55 3.34 36.34 664.00

Prcvious Year 329.98 60.89 5.13 t7.38 33.92 447.30

Perticulrrs

Figures rt the
.rd of thc

currant raporting
period

Figures rt the
end of the
previous

reporting period

Cash on Hand

Balaoce with Balk
Fixed Deposit with Bank

Total Crsh & Cash f,quivalents

0.05

5l.l l
3.52

0.07

230.65

416.36

51.68 6,17.08

Prrliculars



NOTE . IE SHORT TER]II I-OANS AND ADVANCES

NOTE . I9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Psrriculsrs
Figures at the end ofth€
currert r€porting p€riod

Figures at the €nd ofthe
previous reporting period

Securcd Considered good

Advance to Seabird Sea Plane Private Limited
(Secued by charge on Movable Ass€t - KODTAK 100 aircraft )

The borrower Company is under a Corporate lnsolvency Resolution
process. Hoytever, the Management is confident ofrealizing the loan
amounl wilh inlerest.

Uusecurcd Considercd good

Advance to Suppliers and Contractors

Advsnce Income Tax & TDS

Balances with Covemrnent Authorities

T.ttrl Short Term Lorns & Advances

301.85 301.85

301.85

8.82

45.23

13.28

30 t.85

0.36

36.73

15.13

52.22

369.18 35{.07

Psrlicuhrs
Figures rt the end ofthe
current r€porting period

Figures at the end ofthe
previous reporting period

Prepaid [nsualce

Prepaid Expense

ht€Iest/ Accrued hcome Reccivable

Totrl Other Curretrt Ass€ts

12.29

t.73

9.58

12.08

0.39

63.36

75.83

67.33

23.60
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MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LINIITED & ITS ASSOCIATE

ICIN Numbcr- U630l2KL20l lPTC028E39l

NOTI - 20 Rcvcnue from Opcr.tions (Ir Lakhs)

NOTE - 2l Othcrlncome

Particulars
For the period 01.04.202f,

to 3I.03.2024

For th€ period
01.0,1.2022 to

31.03.2023

Other Income

Other non-operating income 50.92 51.93

50.92

NOTE - 22 Direct Expenses

Particulars
For the period 01.04.2023

to 31.0f,.2024

For the period
01.04,2022 to

31.03.202.3

Re[tal Charges

Dir€ct labour-Outsouced

Other Operational Expense

Total of Direct Expenses

266.38

192.49

327.16

232.82

t61.59

242.66

186.63 637.01

Note 22,1 - Othet Oryrationol E penses includes INR I I Lakhs of Guaruntee comnission paid to lnkel Li ited.

Prrticulars For the period 0!.04,2023
to 31.03.2024

For the pcriod
01.04.2022 io

31.03.2023

(a) Sale of Products

Domestic Sales

Export Sales

(b) Sale ofservices

Domestic Sales

Expon Sales

(c) Grants or Donations received

(d) Other opemting revenues

Total of R€venue From Operations

1,800.25 1,678.79

t,800.25 1,678.79

51.93



Particulars For the period 01.04.2023

ro 31.03.2024

For the period
01.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

(a) Salaries & Allowances

Employee Salary

Managerial remuneration

(b) Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

(c) Staff Welfare Expense

Total of f, mployee Benefits

64.09

3.64

t.35

64.96

8.22

1.38

69.08 71.56

NOTf, - 23 Employee Berefit Expenses

NOTE - 24 Finance Costs

For the period 01.04.202.1

to 31.03.2024

For th. p.riod
01.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

Interest Expense 46.97 76.45

46.97 76.15

NOTf, - 25 Deprei.stion/Amortization

P.rticulars
For the period 01.04.202.3

to 31.03.2024

For the period
01.04.2022 to

31.03.2023

(a) Depreciation on Tangible Assets

(b) Amortization on lrtangible Assets

10 t.34

57.33

t06.52

56.16

158.67 163.28

NOTE - 26 Oth€r Erpetrses

Particulars
For the period 01.04.2023

to 31.03.2024

For thc pGriod

01,04.20221o
3r.03.2023

(a) Rent

- OIfice Rent

- Amual L-eas€ Rent

@) Travelling Expoues:

- Hotel and Ac{ommodatiol

- Travelling Expenses

(c) Audit Fees

- Statutory Audit Fe€s

- Tax Audit Fees

. Others

(d) Repairs & Maintenalc€

. Building

. Office

- Machinery

- Equipment

(e) Luurancl

329.0'7

24.02

2.00

29.53

4.6t

16.58

322.62

20.98

t.40

0.40

0.16

29.65

19.56

Prrticulars



(0 Telephone & intemet charges:

- Mobile Phone Expenses

- Intcmet Charges

(g) Other Expenses

- Bank charges

. Sitting fee to Dircctors

- Annual Maintainencr Contract

- OIIice General Exp€nse

- Facility Management Servicr Exp€nse

- Electricity ard Water Charges

- Professional Charges & trgal Fee

- Penal Charges

- Rates & Taxes

. Other services

- CPT Sub.,lras€ Rent

Total ofOther Expcnses

2.01

5.64

2.00

3.43

t7.90

46.82

66.80

5.18

0.77

6.61

92.94

9.31

1.80

3.39

t'7.59

53.50

51.37

8.78

r53.82

5.93

80.38

46.20

656.03 829.26

NOTE - 27 Earrings Per Share

Psrticulars
For the period 01.0,1.2023

to.31.03.2024

For the period
01.0.1.2022 to

31.0t.2023

Basic:

Profit / (loss) for the Period

Number of Equity Shares

Eamings per Share

Diluted:

Profit / (loss) fot the Period

Nuober ofEquity Shares

Eamines p€r Sharc

l18.61

3,00,00,000

0.40

I 18.61

3,00,00,000

0.40

-6'1.t9

3,00,00,000

(0.22)

-67.19

3,00,00,000

-0.22



MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED & ITS ASSOCIATE

26 Contitrgcrt Lirbilities lnd Commitmelts (lNR in Lrkhs)

29 Propos.d Dividcnd

There is no amount of dividends propos€d to be distributcd to equily and preference shareholders for the period.

30 The Company has not revalued its Itoperty, Plant and Equipment during fY 2023-24

3l Utrdis.los.d tB.om.
There are no tra$actions that are not rccorded in the books of accoutrt to be s0rrendered or disclosed as incomc during the year

in lhe tax aasessf,enB uodcl the Income Tax Act, 196l.

32 Deteils relrtilg to Micro, Smrll {nd l\Iedium enterprises (lNR in Lakhs)

Addilionrl R.sulrtorv lnformttion

33 Title d..ds oftmmovsble property not held in narnc ofthc Conpany

The Company has no immoval)le propeny whose title deeds are not held in thc name ofthe ComJEny

Perticulars
Figures et the end

of the currenl
reportiog period

Figures rt the €nd
ofthe prcvious

reporting prriod

(a) Contingent liabilities

l. Claims against the Company not acknowledSed as debt 84.65

2. Guarantees

3. Other money tor which the Company is mntingently liable

4. Ar€ars of fixed cumulative dividend olprefereDct shares

(b) Commitments

l. Enimated Amount ofconEacts remaining (o be executed on capital acmunt and

not provided for
2. UDcalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

3. Other commitments (specify nature)

Total 84.65

Figur.s.t the end

ofthe currenl
reporting Period

Figur.s rt th..trd
ofth. pr.vious

reporting p.riod

(a) Amount remaidng unpaid to any supplier at the end ofesch accounting year;

I) 'Principal aftount

2) 'lflterest amount

(b) The amount of interest paid by the Compary in terms of section 16 of the Micro,

Small a Medium Ent€rpris€s DeveloprDent Act,2006 (MSMED Acl), along with

fte afiount ofthc psymeot made to the supplig beyond the appointed day during lbe

yeat

I amount

2) 'Interest a$ount
(c) Th€ afiount of irtsest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond lhe appointed day during the year) but without

adding lhe interest sp€cilied under lhe MSMED Act, 2006

(d)

The aflount of interest accrued and temaining unpaid at the end of the year; and

(e) The amount of furthet iDteresl remaining due and payable even in lhe succeeding

years, until such date when lho interest dues abov€ ate sctually paid to the small

enterpris€, for lhe pupose of disallowanc! of a deduotible exp€nditure und€t section

23 ofthe MSMED Act, 2006.

Particulars



36

.r5 cwIP Ag.ing Schcdulc

The Company has no Capital Work-in-progress as on 3ll03nD4

Datril3 ofCrpitrl Work-i[-progress, \vhose completion is overdne or htrs.xcccdcd its cost cotnprrrd to its originrl plen]

Th€ Company has no Cspital Work-in-progess as on 3 | /03,2024, whose completion is overdue or has excteded its cost

comparcd to its original plan.

37 Agciog S.hcdul. ollrtrngiblc A!c.t! Und.r D.velopm.trt

The Company hes no Inlan8ible Assets under Development as on 31.03-2024

It Datail! ofiotrtrgibk r*!ab utrdcr davclopmcnt, whosa complction is orcrdue or hrs crcacdad its cost comprrcd to its

origiorl plrnr

The Company has no Int&ngible Assols under developmcnt as on 31.03.2024, whose c.mpletion is ov,rdue ot has exc€€ded its

oost comparEd to its oriSinal ptan.

39 There are no proce€dings initiated or pendi[g agaiost the cotupany for holdillg any benami prop€rty urder lhe Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, l98t (45 of 1988) and the oles made thercunder.

40 The Company has borrowings from ba[k or ftlalrcial institutions on lhe basis ofsecurity ofcurrent assets. However, no

quarierly retums or statemenls of curent assets have becn filed by the Company.

42 The Company had no traosaction with clmpades struck offunder Seclion 248 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Compaoies Ac! 1956 during the FY 2023-24.

13 There are no oharges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar ofcompaDies beyold the statutory period.

4l Finrncirl Rrlios rs on 3lst Msrch 2024 ln INR Lr
7n ofveriancr*Currrlt Period Previous I'eriodNumerrtor

Liquidity Rstio

831.0{r u1.45

t2%|.14 t.l9

Trrde
Receiwbles+Cash &
Cash

Equivalefis+Sho(
Term lrans &
Advmces}Olhet
Currcnt Assets

Short Tenn
BonowiDgs+Tred€
Payabl€s+Other

Current
Li.biliti€s+Short
Tefir Provisions

Currenl Ratio (times)

Solv.ocy Rrlio
376.94 3000.00

0.37 -66%
Sharc Capital

0.13

l.ong Term
Bonowitrgs + Loog-
Term
Provisions+Shorl-
Term Borrowings

Debt-Equity Ratio (limes)

32{.55 -721.26

2.18 -t2tyoRepqment of
installrnents &
interest

-0.45

Nel Pmfit Before
Tax+Depreciatioo
altd Amortization
Expenseflnterest
Expens€

Debt Servic€ Coverage

Ratio (times)

34 The Company has not granted any lorms and Advances in tho naturc of Loans to promoters, directors, KMPS and the related
panies either s€verally or joiotly with any other person that arc repayable on demand or without specirying any terms or p€riod

of ilpayment.

,ll The company has not been declaled wilful defaulter by any bank or financial lnstitution or othe, lender.

Denominetor



Profirrbility rutio

ll8.9r 1800.25

0.07 -0.04 -2660/.
Net Profit After Tax

Revenue fiom
Operations

Retum on Equity Ratio
(%)

1rE.9l 3000.00

0.04 -0.02 -278%Net Profit After Tax-
Preference Dividend Share Capital

Retum on Capital
employed (%)

180.78 t074.60

0.17 0.02 -83%Net Profit Before
Tax+Finarce Cost

Share
Capital+Reserves
and Surplus+I.ng-
T€rm Bofiowings

Utilizrtion Ratio

Trade Receivables
turnover ratio (times)

1800.2s 663.99

2.',t t 3. 16 111%Revenue from
Operations

Tmde Receivables

I6€ntory hmover ratio
(times)

0.00 0.00

NA
Cost of Goods Sold Average lnventory

Trade payables tumover
ratio (times)

146-63 482.62

1.63 1.43 63%
Operating Expenses Trade Payables

Net capital tumover ratio
(times)

1E00.25 280.41

6.42 -6.16 -204%Revenue from
Operation

Current Assets-
Curent Liahihies

45 Corporete Soci!l Responsibility

The Company do€s not fall under the criteria prescrib€d Us 135 ofThe Companies Act, 2013 regardirg th€ applicability of
CsR(Corporate Social Responsibility), henc€ the sarne is not applicable to the Company-

Detsils of Crypto Currency or Virturl Currency
The Company has not taded or invested in Crlpto curency or Vinual Currency during the ffiamial year 2023-24

Complianc€ with numb€r ofhyers ofcornpanies

The Company does trot have any Subsidiaries and h€nc€ Clause (87) ofsectioo 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number oflayers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

Complisnce with rpproved Scheme(s) of Arrsngements
The Company has not made any arrangemmts as p€r Sec 230 ofThe Cor+anies Act, 2013

Utilisntion ofBorrowed funds rnd shxre premiumi

(A) The Company hrls not advanced or loaled or invested funds (either borrorved funds or share p.emium or any other sources

or kiod of funds) to any other pe.son(s) or enlity(ies), includiflg foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the uld€rstanding
specified in clause (xiv) of additioml rcgulatory requiremelt of Schedule III ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

(B)The Compary has not rec€ived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foroign entities (I.'undiltg Party) with the
understanding specified in clause (xiv) of additional regulatory requiretneol of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
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MIV LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

50. The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General lnstructions
in respect ofAccounting Standards notified under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4. Accordingly, the Company has complied
with the Accounting Standards as applicable to a Small and lr4edium sized company.

51. In the opinion ofthe Management, current assets, loans and advances shall realize a value as shown
in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course ofbusiness.

52. Balances of current assets, loans and advances and current liabilities are subject to
confi rmation/reconci liation.

53. Balance ofCash, Inventory and Property, Plant & Equipment are as physically verified and certified
by the Management.

54. There was no amount overdue to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) as on 3lst March,

2024 (PY: Nil). MSMEs have been identified based on information available u'ith the Company.

55. Losses on account of impairment ofassets have not been recognized in the books.

56. The Company did not have any pending litigation(s) as on the date ofthe Balance Sheet, which

would adversely impact its financial position.

57. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses.

58. The Company operates in a single segment and since the company does not fall under Level I

category as defined by the Council of ICAI, no additional disclosure under Accounting Standard -
17, "segment Reporting" is required.

a) Kamalakannan Ellangovan
b) Shaji Kalladayil Mathew
c) Rappai Vareed Chriayath
d) Jayakishnan Krishna Menon
e) Mohammed Fayaz Salam

- Director
- Director
- Director
- Director
- Director

ii) Enterprises where KMP/ their relatives havcgot substantial infl uence:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

59. Related Party Disclosure

I) l.ist of Related oarties:

i) Kev Manaeerial Personnel (KMP):



a) IWs, INKEL Renewable Energy Private Limited is a company in which Mr.
Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Director.

b) M/s. NKEL Limited is a company in which Mr. Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a
Managing Director.

c) M/s. INKEL Infrastructure Development Projects Limited is a company in which
Mr. Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Nominee Director.

d) M/s. INKES Trade Centre Limited is a company in which Mr. Kamalakannan
Ellangovan is a Nominee Director.

e) M/s. INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Kamalakannan
Ellangovan is a Director.

f) IWs, Kerala Infrastructure Fund Management Limited is a company in which Mr.
Kamalakannan Ellangovan is a Managing Director.

g) M/s. INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited is a company in which Mr. Kamalakannan
Ellangovan is a Nominee Director.

h) M/s. Norka-Roots (Sec 25 Company) is a company in which Mr. Kamalakannan
Ellangovan is a Director.

i) lvl/s Tecil Chemicals and Hydro Power Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji
Kalladayil Mathew is a Whole Time Director.

j) lvl/s VKL Estates India Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil
is a Director.

k) tvl/s VKL Projects India Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil
is a Director.

l) lvl/s Sanei Elevators India Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.
m) IWs JVLS lnfrastructure Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
n) lv{/ K V Apartments Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil is

a Director.
o) M/s Sandune Properties Private Limited is a company in which Mr. ShajiKalladayil

is a Director.
p) M/s Vizhinjam Properties India Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji

Kaltadayil is a Director.
q) lWs VKL Builders lndia Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaj i Kalladayil

is a Director.
r) lWs Sealand Builders Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
s) M/s VKL Infrastructure Products Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.
t) lWs Lintex Constructions and Properties Private Limited is a company in which Mr.

Shaji Kalladayil is a Director.
u) lvt/s Seethathode Constructions and Properties Private Limited is a company in

which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil is a Director.
v) IWs VKL Resorts India Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
w) IWs Poothotta Resorts Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji Kalladayil

is a Director.
x) IWs JVK Hotels and Hospitality Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.



y) M/s APPU S Travel and Tourism Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji
Kalladayil is a Director.

z) M/s VK Mining and Logistics Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji
Kalladayil is a Director.

aa) M/s Changanacherry Properties Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Shaji

Kalladayil is a Director.
bb) TJSV Steel Fabrication and Galvanizing (lndia) Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakishnan Krishna Menon is a Managing Director.
cc) Behzad Steel and Galvanizing Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director.
dd)INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited is a company in which Mr.Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Director.
ee) INKEL Infrastructure Development Projects Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director.
ff) Cheraman Financial Services Limited is a company in which Mr.Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Director.
gg) Sowpamika Leasing Gold Finance Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director.
hh) INKEL Limited is a company in which Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a

Director.
ii) INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited is a company in rvhich Mr.Jayakrishnan

Krishna Menon is a Nominee Director.
jj) Behzad Bunkering and Shipchandling Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Director.
kk) Norka-Roots (Sec 25 company) is a company in rvhich Mr.Jayakishnan Krishna

Menon is a Director.
ll) INKEL Renewable Energy Private Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Nominee Director.
mm) Lakeshore Hospital and Research Center Limited is a company in which

Mr.Jayakrishnan Krishna Menon is a Shareholder.
nn) Asset Homes Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Rappai Vareed

Chirayath is a Director.
oo) INKEL Infrastructure Deve I opment Projects Limited is a company in which Mr'

Rappai Vareed Chirayath is a Director.
pp) INKEL Limited is a company in which Mr Rappai Vareed Chirayath is a

Director.
qq) INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited is a company in which Mr' Rappai Vareed

Chirayath is a Nominee Director.
rr) Norka-Roots (Sec 25 company) is a company in which Mr Rappai Vareed

Chirayath is a Director.
ss) INKEL Renewable Energy Private Limited is a company in which Mr. Rappai

Vareed Chirayath is a Nominee Director.
tt) Moopens Energy Services LLP is a company in which Mr. Mohammed Fayaz

Salam is a Designated Partner.
uu) Moopens Energy Solutions Private Limited is a company in which Mr.

Mohammed Fayaz Salam is a Director.
vv) Rainbow Goat Shed Farms Private Limited is a company in rvhich Mr.

Mohammed Fayaz Salam is the Managing Director.



iiD Associate/ Holding Company:

iv)

a) lWs. Seabird Seaplane Private Limited (Associate)

Promoter Companies:

Inkel Limited
M FAR Enterprises Private Limited
VKL Estate India Private Limited

(INR in Lakhs)

Figures in brackets represent amounts for previous year. Related party relationships are as identified

by the Management and the same are relied upon by the auditors.

a)
b)
c)

Enterprises rvherc KI\{P/
Relative have substantial

influence
(Inkel Limited)

Associate Company
(Seabird Seaplane
Private Limited)

Totel

Investment in
Equity Shares

269.14
(26e.14)

269.14
(26e.t4)

Loans & Advances Nil
(NiD

301.85
(301.85)

301.85
(301 .8s)

Investment in
Preference Shares

1600
(1600)

Nil
(Nil)

1600
( 1600)

Reimbursement of
Expenses payable

12.3 8

(8.72)
Nil
(Nil)

12.3 8

(8.72)

Guarantee
Commission
payable

44.87
(38.44)

Nil
(Nir)

44.87
(38.44)

Reimbursement of
Expenses paid

(Nir)
(14.47)

Nil
(Nil)

0.00
(14.47)

Guarantee
Commission paid

6.00
(5.00)

Nil
(Nir)

6.00
(5.00)

Software Expense
0.32
(Nil)

Nil
(NiD

0.32

Consultancy
Charges

0.67
(Nil)

Nil
(Nil) 0.67

D Balances outstandins with Related Parties

Particulars

Nil
(Nir)



60. Information pursuant to the provisions of Part II of Schedule III [Division I] of the

Companies Act, 2013.
(INR in Lakhs)

For the period
O1.04.2022to

31.03.2023

84.65

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nit

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nit

1. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the
Accounts.

2. Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital account and not provided for

a) Cases ofsuppliers who are covered under the 'lnterest
on Delayed Payments to Small Scale and Ancillary
Industrial Undertakings Act, 1993, which have come

to the notice ofthe ComPanY.

b) Amount outstanding for payment to SSIs

c) Name of SSIS to whom the Company owes a sum

exceeding Rs. I lakh which is outstanding for more

than thirty days.

4. The information required under Part II ofSchedule III

[Division I] of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent

applicable to the Company are given below:

a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis by the

Company during the accounting period in respect

of- Raw materials, Components and spare parts

and Capital goods

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency during the

accounting period on account ofroyalty, know-
how, professional and consultation fees, interest,

and other matters.

c) (i) Total value of all imported raw materials, spare

parts and components consumed during the

accounting Period and;

(ii) Total value of all indigenous raw materials, spare

arts and com onents similarl consumed and

For the period
01.04.2023 to

31.03.2024

Particulars

Nit

Nil

84.65

3. Information on dues to Small Scale Industrial Units
(As certified by the Management)



Nil
(iii) The percentage ofeach to the total consumption.

d) The amount remitted during the accounting period

iu foreign currencies on account ofdividends.
Nil

Nil
e) Eamings in Foreign Exchange

5. Foreign Exchange Differences
Nil

Nil

6. Auditors' Remuneration
a. For Statulory Audit
b. For Tax Audit
c. For Other services

1.5 5

0.45
Nil

7. Remuneration to Directors

a. Managerial Remuneration
b. Rent

Nil
Nil

8. Employee Benelit @isclosure under AS - 15)

Expense reoognized in thc Statement of Profit and

Loss on account of defined contribution plans:

i) Employer's Contribution to ESI
ii) Employer's Contribution 1o PF

0.03
3.06

9. Earnings pcr Share

aLBiiic:
i) Profit /(loss) for the Period
ii) Number of Equity Shares

iii) Eamings per Share

iv) Face Value per share

118.91
30000000

0.40
l0

b) Diluted:
i) Profit / (loss) for the Period
ii) Number of Equity Shares

iii) Earnings per Share

ir') Face Value per share

I18.91
30000000

0.10
t0

Nil

Nil

Nil

Ni!

Nil

1.40
0.40
0. t6

0.20
4.11

(66.3e)

30000000
(0.22)

10

(66.8e)
30000000

(0:22)
l0

The cornpany did not default in repayment ofloaus or borrowing repaynlent from any financial61.

a) Debited to the Statement of Profit and l-oss
b) In respect of forward exchange contracts to be

accounted in the subsequent years

Nil
Nit

institution or banks.



63

62.

64.

The arrears of cumulative preference share dividend is INR 1376 Lakhs as at the year-end (Previous
Year - INR 1204 Lakhs) which is not recognized in the Books ofAccounts.

In the year 2022-23, the State Bank oflndia (SBI), SME Branch, Emakulam advanced a working
capital term loan under the Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) of INR 600 Lakhs to the
Company against the hypothecation of stock, receivables, plant & machinery and fixed assets is
INR 374 Lakhs at the end ofthe year 2023-24. The loan is for a period of 60 months and is to be
repaid after a moratorium period of 24 months in 36 installments at an interest rate of 9 -25%o per
annum.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by
Schedule III [Division I] to the Companies Act,2013.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's
classification.

65.

On behalfofthe Board
For MIV Logistics Private Limited

Dr. Ellangovan
Director
D'tN:05272476

Josmy
Company Secretary
Membership No. A58228

As per our Audit Report ofeven date attached
For Korah & Korah
Chartered Accountants
FRN N 006 r 38s

Korah George, ACA
Partner
Membership No.E(tffit 2sso36

Place: Cochin
Date: 1810612024
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Shaji Kalladay
Director
DIN:01866682
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